
<> ENTRY INDIA PROJECTS 
PRIVATE LIMITED 

i\
/\
4 

a /
\
N
 

16" Annual Report 
2023-24 

ENTRY INDIA PROJECTS PRIVATE 

LIMITED 



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Mr. Alok Dhir 

Ms. Maneesha Dhir 

Mr. Madhay Dhir 

Company Secretary 

Statutory Auditors 

Registrar & Share Transfer Agent 

Debenture Trustee 

Registered Office of the Company 

Non-Executive Director 

Non-Executive Director 

Non-Executive Director 

Mr. Kuldeep Bhardwaj 

M/s. Rajiv Jaswant & Co. 

RTF-32, Royal Tower Market, 

Shipra Suncity, Indirapuram 
Ghaziabad-201014 

Skyline Financial Services (P) Ltd 

D-153A, 1st Floor, Okhla Industrial 

Area, Phase -I, New Delhi - 110020 

Axis Trustee Services Limited 
Axis House, Bombay Dyeing Mills 

Compound, Pandurang Budhkar 

Marg, Worli, Mumbai - 400025 

E-14, Defence Colony, New Delhi 
110024 
Phone No: 9289279538 

Email Id: contact@eippl.com 
Website: www.ecippl.com



Entry India Projects Private Limited 
Registered Office: E-14, Defence Colony, New Delhi - 110024 
E-mail : contact@eippl.com « Mab.: 9289279538 

NOTICE FOR 16'! ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

Notice is hereby given that the 16 Annual General Meeting of Members of M/s Entry 
India Projects Private Limited will be held on Monday, 30" September, 2024, at 11:00 
A.M. at the registered office of the Company at E-14, Defence Colony, New Delhi 
110024 to transact the following business: 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

1. To consider and adopt the Standalone & Consolidated Audited Financial Statement of 
the Company for the financial year ended on 31 March, 2024 and the Report of the 
Board of Directors and Auditors thereon. 

2. To appoint M/s Rajiv Jaswant & Co., Chartered Accountants, (FRN No. 016018C), as 
a Statutory Auditor of the Company for the financial year 2024-25. 

To consider, and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following 
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT subject to the provisions of Section 139 and other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, and rules framed thereunder, as amended 
from time to time, M/s. Rajiv Jaswant & Company, Chartered Accountants, (FRN: 
016018C) be and are hereby re-appointed as Statutory Auditor of the Company for the 
Financial Year 2024-25 to conduct the statutory audit of the Company and they shall hold 
the office from the conclusion of 16" Annual General Meeting (AGM) to be held on 
30.09.2024 to the 17" Annual General Meeting to be held in the Financial year 2025-26. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be & are 
hereby authorized to fix the remuneration of the statutory Auditor M/s. Rajiv Jaswant & 
Company, Chartered Accountants, (FRN: 016018C) in consultation with them for the 
financial year 2024-25.” 

SPECTAL BUSINESS: 

3. Re-Classification of Authorized Share Capital of the Company 

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modifications, the following 
resolution as Special Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 13, 61 and all other 
applicable provisions, if any, under the Companies Act, 2013, (including any amendment 
thereto or re-enactment thereof), the consent of the Members of the Company be and are 
hereby accorded for re-classification of the Authorized Share Capital of the Company, 
where the existing Authorised Share Capital of the Company Rs. 2,10,00,000/- (Rupees 
Two Crore Ten Lakh Only) divided into 11,00,000 (Eleven Lakh) Ordinary Equity Shares 
of Rs. 10/- each and 10,00,000 (Ten Lakh) Class-B Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each be and 
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are hereby reclassified as Rs. 2,10,00,000/- (Rupees Two Crore Ten Lakh Only) divided 
into 21,00,000 (Twenty One Lakh) Equity Shares of 10/- (Rupees Ten) each.” 

4, Alteration in the Capital Clause of Memorandum of Association of the 
Company 

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modifications, the following 
resolution as Special Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 13 and all other applicable provisions, if any, 
of the Companies Act, 2013, the consent of the Members of the Company be and are 
hereby accorded to alter the Clause V of the Memorandum of Association of the 

Company as to Authorized Share Capital be and is hereby modified and the following 
clause will be substituted in its place: 

Y. The Authorised Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 2,10,00,000/- (Rupees 

Two Crore Ten Lakh Only) divided into 21,00,000 (Twenty One Lakh) 
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten) each. 

For and on behalf of the Board of Director of 

M/s Entry India Projects Private Limited 

ASF ABER Z we KE 2D 
a oY _" 

: (= enone S| 
Place: New Delhi Madhav Dhir  \\ / x / 
Date: 12.08.2024 Director VE wo 

DIN: 07227587 eal



Note:- 

1) 

2) 

3) 

4) 

5) 

6) 

A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS 
ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND, AND VOTE INSTEAD 
OF HIMSELF.SUCH A PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE 
COMPANY. 

Proxies in order to be valid and effective must be delivered at the registered office 
of the company not later than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting. 
Proxy form enclosed to this notice. 

All the document referred to in the accompanying Notice are open for inspection at 

the Registered Office of the Company between 10-00 A.M to 1-00 P.M. on all 
working days till the date of Annual General Meeting. 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 105 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the 

Rules framed thereunder, a person can act as proxy on behalf of Members not 

exceeding 50 and holding in the aggregate not more than 10% of the total share 
capital of the Company carrying voting rights. A Member holding more than 10% 
of the share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single 
person as a proxy and such a proxy shall not act as a proxy for any other person or 
Member. 

Corporate Members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the 
AGM are requested to send a duly certified copy of their Board Resolution 
authorizing their representatives to attend and vote at the AGM. 

Explanatory Statement as required under Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 
2013, relating to the Special Business to be transacted at the Meeting is annexed 
hereto. 

7) A Route Map along with Prominent Landmark for easy location to reach the 
venue of Annual General Meeting is annexed with the notice of Annual General 
Meeting.



EXPLANATORY STATEMENT 

[Explanatory Statement in Pursuant to the Provision of Section 102 of the 

Companies Act, 2013] 

Item No. 3 & 4: 

In order to meet the future contingencies and prospects as and when arise, Board of 
Directors of the Company proposes to infuse more funds by way of capital in ordinary 
class of equity shares hence it is proposed to reclassify the Existing Authorised Share 
Capital of the Company from Rs. 2,10,00,000/- (Rupees Two Crore Ten Lakh Only) 

divided into 11,00,000 (Eleven Lakh) Ordinary Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each and 

10,00,000 (Ten Lakh) Class-B Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each to Rs. 2,10,00,000/- 
(Rupees Two Crore Ten Lakh Only) divided into 21,00,000 (Twenty One Lakh) Equity 
Shares of 10/- (Rupees Ten) each as well as respective change in clause V of 

Memorandum of Association of the Company. 

After conversion of the Class B Equity Shares into Ordinary Equity Shares, Differential 
Voting Rights of Equity Shares stands cancelled and Company will issue new ordinary 
share certificate to all the existing class B shareholders and the same shall be rank pari 

passu in all respects with the existing equity shares of the Company and class B share 

certificates with differential voting rights will be cancelled and extinguished. 

The Board therefore, submits the resolutions as set out in item no.3 & 4 for your 

consideration & approval and recommends it to be passed as a Special Resolution. 

None of the directors or key managerial personnel of the Company or their relatives are in 

any way, concemed or interested, financially or otherwise, in the above resolution. 

For and on behalf of the Board of Director of 

M/s Entry India Projects Private Limited 

2 ’ wa 

Place: New Delhi Madhav Dhir \2:\“ 
Date: 12.08.2024 Director ; 

DIN: 07227587
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To 

All the Members, 

PRIVATE LIMITED 

BOARD’S REPORT 

Entry India Projects Private Limited 

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 16" Annual Report of the Company 

together with Audited Accounts for the financial year ended 3 1*' March 2024. 

Financial results: 

The Financial working results for the financial year 2023-24 are as under: 

(Amount in Rs. ‘000) 

Particulars Standalone Consolidated 

31.03.2024 | 31.03.2023 31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

Total Income 57,189 60,947 57,189 60,947 

Less: Total Expenditure 33,410 56,228 37,785 58,716 

Profit/(loss) before Tax 23,779 4,719 19,404 2,231 

Less: Taxes 2,875 906 2,875 906 

Net Profit/(loss) after 20,904 3,814 16,529 1,325 

Tax 

. State of Business affairs 

Company was incorporated on 23™ January, 2008. “Entry India Projects Private Limited”, 

a company registered under the Companies Act 1956 with the ROC, New Delhi, with the 

object to commence/carry on the business of construction of residential houses, 

commercial buildings, flats and buildings in or outside of India and to act as builders, 

colonisers and civil and constructional contractors. 

. Transfer to Reserves 

During the financial year 2023-24, the Company has not transferred any amount to 

General Reserve. 

. Dividend 

During the financial year 2023-24, the Company has not declared any dividend. 



5. Web Link for Annual Return 

Annual Return of the Company can be access at the website of the company at 
www.eippl.com. 

6. Details of Holding, Subsidiary, Joint Venture and Associate Companies (Annexure-l) 

Name of Company Holding/Subsidiary/Associate/Joint Section 

Venture 

Cygnet Projects Private Associate 2(6) 
Limited 

7. Meetings of the Board of Directors 

Seven (7) Meetings of the Board of Directors of the Company were held during the 

financial year 2023-24, details of which are given below: 

Date of the Board Meeting No. of Directors attended the meeting 
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26.03.2024 

8. Directors’ Responsibility Statement 

Your Directors state that: 

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended March 31, 2024, the 
applicable accounting standards read with requirements set out under Schedule III to 
the Act, have been followed and there are no material departures from the same; 

b) the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and 

made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and 
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31", 2024 and profit 

earned by the Company for the year ended on that date; 

c) the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate 

accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the 

assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

d) the Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a ‘going concern’ basis; 
4) an 
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10. 

11, 

12. 

13. 

e) the Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the 
Company and that such internal financial controls are adequate and are operating 
effectively; and 

f) the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of 
all applicable laws and that such systems are adequate and operating. 

Auditors 

Pursuant to the provision of the section 139 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and rules framed thereunder, as amended from time to time, M/s. 

Rajiv Jaswant & Company, Chartered Accountants, were recommended by the Board of 
Directors for their re- appointed as Statutory Auditor of the Company for the financial 
year 2024-25 to conduct the audit of books of accounts of the Company in the 
forthcoming Annual General Meeting to be held on 30.09.2024 and they shall hold the 

office from the conclusion of 16™ Annual General Meeting of the Company to till the 
conclusion of 17 Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held in the financial 
year 2025-26, at such remuneration as agreed between the Board of Directors of the 
Company and the Statutory Auditor. 

Pursuant to the provision of Section 134 (3ca) read with Section 143 (12) of the 

Companies Act, 2013, there are no such frauds reported by auditors of the Company in 
their report. 

Pursuant to the provision of Section 134 (Gf) of the Companies Act 2013, there is no any 

qualification, reservation or adverse remark made by the Auditor in their report. 

Declaration given by Independent Director 

The provisions of Section 149 (7) of the Companies Act, 2013, regarding declaration to 

be given by every independent director as per the provisions of section 149 sub-section 
(6) of the Companies Act, 2013, are not applicable to the Company. 

Policy on Director’s Appointment and Remuneration 

The provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act 2013, regarding policy on director’s 
appointment and remuneration are not applicable to the Company. 

Particulars of loans given, investments made, guarantees given and securities 
provided 

Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under the provisions of Section 
186 of the Companies Act, 2013 and full particulars of Loans given, Investments made 
and Guarantees given, and Securities provided are furnished in the Notes to Financial 
Statements for the financial year 2023-24 of the Company. 

Contracts and Arrangements with related parties 

All contracts / arrangements / transactions entered by the Company during the financial 

year 2023-2024 with related parties were in the ordinary course of business and on_an 
arm’s length basis as per the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies A Act, 2013.0 ON, 



14. Material Changes and Commitments 

No material changes and commitments have occurred between the end of the financial 

year to which the financial statements relate and the date of Report, which have the 
impact on the financial position of the Company. 

15. Changes in Share Capital 

Authorised Share Capital 

During the financial year 2023-24, there was no change in the authorized share capital of 
the Company. 

Paid up Share Capital 

During the financial year 2023-24, there was no change in the paid up share capital of the 
Company. 

16. Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings 
and Outgo. 

The disclosure to be made under sub section (3) (m) of Section 134 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with Rule (8) (3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 by your 
Company are explained as under: 

a) Conservation of Energy & Technology Absorption :N.A 
b) Foreign Exchange Earning & Outgo : NIL 

17. Risk Management Policy 

Normally the risks are classified as financial risk, operational risk and market risk, so far 
as your Company is concerned Periodic assessments to identify the risk areas are carried 
out and management is briefed on the risks in advance to enable the Company to Control 
risk if any. 

18. Corporate Social Responsibility 

The Provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, regarding Corporate Social 
Responsibility were not applicable to the Company for the financial year 2023-24. 

19, Directors and Key Managerial Personnel 

The Board of Directors comprised of Three Non-Executive Directors and One Key 
Managerial Personnel as on 31°' March, 2024. 

Composition of Board of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company as on 
31.03.2024 are as follows: 



20. 

21. 

22. 

23. 

24, 

25. 

S. No. | Name of Directors & KMP Date of Appointment | Designation 

1. Mr. Alok Dhir 11/11/2019 Director 

2. Ms. Maneesha Dhir 01/01/2020 Director 

3, Mr. Madhav Dhir 09/11/2015 Director 

4. Mr. Kuldeep Bhardwaj 10/08/2022 Company Secretary 

The Provisions regarding the formal Annual Evaluation of the performance of the Board 
of Directors etc., are not applicable to the Company. 

Public Deposits 

Your Company has not accepted any deposit from the public and no amount on account 

of principal or interest on deposit from public was outstanding as on 31‘! March, 2024. 

Significant and Material Orders passed by the Regulators 

No significant and material orders were passed by the regulators or Courts or Tribunais 

impacting the Company’s going concern status and the Company’s operations in future. 

The details of application made or any proceeding pending under the Insolvency 

and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (31 of 2016) during the year along with their status as at 

the end of the financial year 2023-24 

During the under review there were no applications made or proceeding pending in the 

name of the Company under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016, 

The details of difference between amount of the valuation done at the time of one- 

time settlement and the valuation done while taking loan from the Banks or 

Financial Institutions along with the reasons thereof. 

During the under review, the Company has not availed any loan from Banks / Financial 

Institutions, accordingly there has been no one time settlement of loans taken from Banks 

and Financial Institutions. 

Prevention of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace 

During the year under review, there was no instance reported under Sexual Harassment of 
Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013. 

Listing Details 

The Company has given details of Debt Security listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange 
AVECTE AN 
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1,000 (One Thousand) Nos. Unsecured, Zero Coupon, Non-Convertible Debentures of 

Rs. 1,00,000/- each for an aggregate amount of Rs. 10,00,00,000/- (Rupees Ten Crore 

Only) fully paid up issued by the Company on 04.10.2017 which are redeemable in 10 
years. 

Details of Debenture Trustee 

Namie of Debenture Trustee: 

Address: 

Axis Trustee Services Limited 

Axis House, Bombay Dyeing Mills Compound, 
Pandurang Budhkar Marg, 
Worli, Mumbai - 400025 

Details of RTA 

Name of RTA: Skyline Financial Services (P) Ltd 

Address: D-153A, Ist Floor, Okhia Industrial Area, 

Phase -I, New Delhi — 110020 

26. Related Party Disclosure specified in Para- A of Schedule V of SEBI LODR, 2015 

A. Related Party Disclosures: 

1, The Company has made all disclosures in compliance with Accounting Standards on 
“Related Party Disclosure” in the Balance Sheet of the Company for the financial 
year 2023-24. 

2. The Disclosure requirements shall be as follows: 

S. | In the accounts of Disclosures of amounts at the year end and the 

maximum amount of loans/advances/Investment 
outstanding during the year. 

1. | Holding Company Company does not have any Holding Company 

2. | Subsidiary Company Company does not have any Subsidiary Company 

2A. Disclosures of transactions of the Company with any person or entity belonging to the 

promoters/ promoter group given in the annual report of the Company. 



27, Acknowledgements 

Your Directors gratefully acknowledge and appreciate the support extended by the 
Shareholders, Stakeholders, Financial Institutions, Government Authorities and Others 
for their continued support, confidence and trust in the Company. 

For and on behalf of the Board of Director of 

M/s Entry India Projects Private Limited 
AS RYN, 
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Place: New Delhi A lok Dhir Madhav Dhir~ 
Date: 12.08.2024 Director Director 

DIN: 00034335 DIN: 07227587 



ENTRY INDIA PROJECTS PRIVATE LIMITED 

Registered Office: E-14, Defence Colony, New Delhi-110024 
CIN: U45400DL2008PTC173053, Phone No: 9289279538, 
Email id: contact@eippl.com, Website: www.eippl.com 

Form No. MGT-11 

Proxy Form 

(Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014) 

CIN: U45400DL2008PTC173053 
Name of the Company: Entry India Projects Private Limited 
Reg. Office: E-14, Defence Colony, New Delhi-110024 

Name of the Member(s): 

Registered address: 

E-mail Id: 
Folio No.: 

I/We, being the member(s) of Equity Shares of the above named Company, hereby appoint: 

1. Name: 

E-mail Id: 

Address: 

SiQMAtures oo... ecccacecnesteeeeeeeesesesesessuusueserecesecccecsacsaarsseress , or failing 
him 

2. Name: 

E-mail Id: 

Address: 

SiQMature: oo. ccececcccccseeuececeeceeeeesbensscescssceerseeeeuanssetenaaueeees , or failing 
him 

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 16" Annual 
General Meeting of the Company to be held on Monday, 30 Day of September, 2024 at 11:00 
A.M. at its Registered Office at E-14, Defence Colony, New Delthi-110024 and at any 
adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below: 

Resolution Ordinary Business Optional* 
No. 

For Against 

1. To consider and adopt the Standalone & 

Consolidated Audited Financial Statement of 
the Company for the financial year ended on 
31 March, 2024 and the Report of the Board 
of Directors and Auditors thereon. 



2. To appoint M/s Rajiv Jaswant & Co., 

Chartered Accountants, (FRN No. 
016018C), as a Statutory Auditor of the 
Company for the financial year 2024-25. 

Special Business 

3. Re-Classification of Authorized Share 

Capital of the Company 

4, Alteration of the Capital Clause of the 
Memorandum of Association of the 
Company 

* It is optional to put “x” in the appropriate column against the resolutions indicated in the box. If 

you leave the ‘ For’ or ‘Against’ column blank against any or all resolutions, your proxy will be 

entitle to vote in the manner as he/she thinks appropriate. 

Signed this ........ Day Of... cece ceeees 

Affix Revenue 

Stamp of Rs.1/- 

Signature of Shareholder Signature of Proxy holder(s) 

Notes: 

1. This Form of Proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the 

Office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting. 

2. Appointing proxy does not prevent a member from attending in person if he so wishes. 

3. In case of joint holders, the signature of any one holder will be sufficient, but names of all the 

joint holders should be stated. 

3 ie ob ofa oe oe oe ok oe 



ATTENDANCE SLIP 
(To be presented at the entrance) 

THE 16™ ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF THE MEMBERS OF M/S ENTRY INDIA 
PROJECTS PRIVATE LIMITED TO BE HELD ON MONDAY, 30™ DAY OF 
SEPTEMBER, 2024 AT 11:00 AM AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY 
AT E-14, DEFENCE COLONY, NEW DELHI-110024. 

Registered Folio NO.:..........:ecccssseeeeeees No. of shares: ...........ccccceeeee scene 

Name of the Member?...... 0.0... ..ccccceeceeccueceeeees Signature: .......cecececnesseeeeeeees 

Name of the Proxy holder:................cc.cceeee Signature: 000... clecceeceeceae es 

UWe, oes eeecceceeceeeeeeeeeeenes , hereby confirm that I/We have duly received the Notice of the 
16" Annual General Meeting of M/s Entry India Projects Private Limited and record my/our 
presence at this meeting to be held on Monday, 30" Day of September, 2024 at 11:00 AM at its 
Registered Office at E-14, Defence Colony, New Delhi-110024. 

Note: 

1. Only Member/Proxy holder can attend the Meeting. 

2. Member/Proxy holder should bring his/her copy of this Notice for reference at the Meeting. 

Seok oR oe Re oe op ok



Road Map of the location of the venue of Annual General Meeting 
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Annexure-I 

Form AOC-1 

(Puxsuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014) 

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries or associate 
companies or joint ventures 

Part A Subsidiaries- NOT APPLICABLE 
(Informatjon in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs.) 

The date since when sub jdiary was acquired - 

4. Reporting period for the subsi 
reporting period. — 

5. Reporting currency and Exchan 
in the case of foreign subsidiaries.- 

6. Share capital- 
7, Reserves and surplus — 
8. Total assets- 
9. Total Liabilities- 

10. Investments- 
11. Turnover- 
12. Profit before taxation- 
13. Provision for taxation- 
14. Profit after taxation 
15. Proposed Dividend- 
16. Extent of shareholding (in percentage)- 

iary concerned, if different from the holding company’s 

rate as on the last date of the relevant Financial year 

Notes: The following information shall be furnished at the end of the st 

1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations 
2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year.



Part B Associates and Joint Ventures 

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate 

Companies and Joint Ventures 

(Amount in Rupees) 

Name of Associates or Joint Ventures Cygnet Projects Pvt. Ltd 

1. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date As at 31.03.2024 

2. Date on which the Associate or Joint Venture was associated 22.03.2018 

lor acquired 

3. Shares of Associate or Joint Ventures held by the company on 

the year end 

No. of Shares 42,28,250 

Amount of Investment in Associates or Joint Venture (in Rs.) 6,87,09,063 

Extent of Holding (in percentage) 47.76% 

4. Description of how there is significant influence 47.76% 

IS. Reason why the associate/joint venture is not consolidated 

6. Net worth attributable to shareholding as per latest audited 
Balance Sheet (in Rs.) 

56 EIA S T44 

7. Profit or Loss for the year (in Rs.) (10,11,613) 

i. Considered in Consolidation (4,83, 147) 

ii. Not Considered in Consolidation (5,28,466) 

1. Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations. N.A. 
2, Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year. 

NLA. 

For and on behalf of board of directors of 

ox 
Madhay Dhir 

Director 

DIN: 07227587 

ia Projects Private Limited 



oy RAJU JASWANT & CO. 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

Off : RTF-32, Royal Tower Market, Shipra Suncity, Indirapuram, Ghaziabad-201 014 

Ph No: 0120-431 7371, 9717409122 E-Mail : rajivjaswantandco@gmail.com 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

To The Members of 

ENTRY INDIA PROJECTS PRIVATE LIMITED 

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Entry India Projects Private 
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 2024, the Statement of 
Profit and Loss, Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and 
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other 

explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the standalone financial statements”). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according 1o the explanations given te us, the 
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the 
Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting. 

Standards prescribed under the section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting. ~~ 

Standards ) Rules, 2015,as amended, (“Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in 

India, of the state of atfairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, the Profit and total comprehensive 

income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on 

Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are 

further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our 

report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute 

of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant t0 our 

audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have 

fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAT’s Code of 

Ethics, We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion on the standalone financial statements. . 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our 

audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of ovr 

audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a 

separate opinion on these matters. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

To The Members of 

ENTRY INDIA PROJECTS PRIVATE LIMITED 

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Entry India Projects Private 

Limited (“the Company”}, which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 2024, the Statement of 

Profit and Loss, Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and. 
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other. - - 

explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the standalone financial statements”). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the 

Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting 
Standards prescribed under the section 133. of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting . 

Standards ) Rules, 2015,as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in 

India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, the Profit and total comprehensive 

income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements; in accordance with the Standards on 

Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(19) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are 

further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities Jor the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our’ 
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute” ~ 

of Chartered Accountants of India (CAD together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our 

audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have 

fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of 

Ethics, We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 

for our opinion on the standalone financial statements. 

Key Audit Matters A 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our 

audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our 

audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a 

separate opinion on these matters.



Other Information - Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors Report thereon 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and. presentation of the other” 
information. The other Information comprises the information included in the Board’s Report including 
Annexures.to Board’s Report and Annual Return, but does not include the financial statements and our 
auditor’s report thereon. 

Our Opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any 
form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility i is to read the other information 
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is’ materially inconsistent with the financial 
statements.or our knowledge obtained in the course of our audit, or otherwise’ appears to be materially 
misstated. 

Tf, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for Financial Statements 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with 

respect to the preparation of these standaione financial statements that give a true and fair view of the 

financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of 

the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted: in India. 

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 

provisions of the. Act for safeguarding. of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting — 

frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate implementation and maintenance of 

accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, 

implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for 

ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 

presentation of the standalone financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material 

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

. In preparing the financial statements, management. is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to 

continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going- 

concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease-~ 

operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are 

free from material misstatement, whether due to frand or etror, and to isstie an auditors’ report that 

includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 

conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 

Assay 
ON i, Ss Vo 

\o } 

3) FRN glooiac / } | 
ONG fabad / of 

. 
i
o
)
 

ay 
Ar Acco 

\\ _ 

| 
|



they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 

financial statements. 

As pari of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgmient and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 

fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 

evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 

detecting a miaterial misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as 

fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 

internal control. 

* Obtain an understanding of internai control relevant io the audit in order-to design audit procedures 

that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)@) of the Act, we are also responsible 

for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system 

in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. . 

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates and related disclosures made by management. ‘ 

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, - 

based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or- 

conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concer. 

If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ 

report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to 

modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 

auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue 

as a going concern, 

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and: content of the financial ‘Statements, including the 

disclosures, and whether the financiaf statements represent the underlying transactions and events in 

a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, 

makes it probable that the. economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial 

statements may be influenced. 

We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in . 

@ planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and 

(ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 

and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal 

control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 

ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and. other 
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matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 

safeguards, 
|. 

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS 

. 1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central 

Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure‘ 

A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. =~ 

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

{a) We have sought and obtained ali the information and explanations which to the best of our 

' knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

(b} In our opinion, proper books of account as required by. law havé been kept by the Company so far as 

it appears from our examination of those books. 

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash 

Flow Statement dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account. 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statemerits comply with the Indian Accounting 

Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the ‘Companies {Accounts) 

Rules, 2014, . 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March, 2024 taken on 

record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as'‘on 31 March, 2024 from 

being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act. 

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial: reporting of the 
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in 

“Annexure B”, 

(g) The Company being a private limited Company, the provisions of Section 197(16) of the Act 

regarding managerial remuneration are not applicable. 

{h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule 11 

of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in‘our opinion and to the best of our information 

and according to the explanations given to us: 

i. There were no pending litigations. observed which would impact the financial position of the 

_ Company. 

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there 

were any material foreseeable losses; 

iii. There were no amounts’ which were required to be, transferred to the Investor Education and 

Protection Fund by the Company.



| 
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iv. (a) The management has represented that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, no funds have 

been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other 

sources or kind of funds) by-the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including 

foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or 

otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other 

persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company 

(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate” 
Beneficiaries, ‘ 

(b) The management has represented, that, to the best-of it’s Knowledge and belief, no funds 

have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies}, including foreign entities 

(“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 

Company ‘shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities 

identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Uitimate 

Beneficiaries”} or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 

Beneficiaries; and 

(c) Based on such audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the 
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the 

representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11{e}, as provided under (a) and (b) above, 

contain any material mis-statement. : 

y. The Company has not proposed, declared and paid Any dividend during the year. Accordingly... - 

‘reporting under Rule 11(f) is not applicable to the Company. 

vi. Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used accounting 

softwares for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 which 

has a featuré of recording audit trail (edit jog} facility and the same has operated throughout the 

year for all relevant transactions recorded in the softwares. Further, during the course of our audit 

we-did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature béing tampered with. 
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading {Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements” of our report ofeven date 

i. (a) (A)The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative 
details and situation of property, plant and equipment. , 
(B) The Company is not having any intangible assets. Therefore, the provisions of clause (i)(aXB) 
of paragraph of the order are not applicable to the Company. 

(b) The Company has a regular program of physical verifi cation of. its property, plant and equipments, 
which in our opinion provides for physical verification of all property, plant and equipments at- 
reasonable intervals. According to the information and explanations given to us, no material. ~ ~ 
discrepancies were noticed on such verification. 

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of 
the records, the title deeds of immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is 
the lessee and the lease agreement are duly executed in favor of the lessee) disclosed in the 
financial statements are held in the name-of the Company. 

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant & Equipment’ s during the year. Therefore, the 
provisions of clause (i)(d} of paragraph 3 of the order ate not applicable to the Company. 

(c) According to the information and explanation given to us and oa the basis of our checking of 
records etc. no proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding 
any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act,1988 (45 of 1988) and rules 
made thereunder. 

fi. (a) The Company does not have any inventory, accordingly paragreph 3Gi) of the order is not 
applicable te the Company. : 

(b} According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of 
the records of the Company, the Company has not-been sanctioned any working capital limits, from 
banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets. Therefore, the provisions of 
clause (ii)(b) of paragraph 3 of the order is not applicable to the Company, 

iii, €a) Loans given to other entities: 

" (Rs. In 000°) 
Particulars Aggregate Balance Loan,, Advance and 

atmioant during | outstanding as | Guarantee or Security 
the year at year end 

A. To subsidiaries, joint 17,500 10,000 - 
ventures and associates. 

B. To parties other than 60,000 10,892 Inter Corporate Loan 
subsidiaries, joint ; 
ventures and associates, 

{b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Investments: ~ 
made, grant of all loans and advances by the Company during the year are not prejudicial to the interest 
of the Company. The Company has made investments during the year (Please refer Note-26 of the 
audited financials statement for the year ending on 31.03.2024). 
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iv. 

vil. 

Vili. 

ix. 

(c} In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of loans 
and advances in the nature of loans, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has 
been stipulated and.the repayments or receipts are regular, - 

_ (d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no. amount 
averdue in respect of loans and advances, 

(e) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, no such dues renewed 
or extended or settled by fresh loans during the year. 

(® In our opinion and according to the information and explanations'given to us, the Company has not 
granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on demand or without specifying. 
any terms or period of repayment. 

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has 
coinplied with the provisions of sections 185.and 186 of the Companies Act with respect to the loans 
and investments made, 

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 
accepted deposits during the year. Therefore, the provisions of the paragraph 3 (v)} of the Order are not 
applicable to the Company 

r 

The Central Government of India has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under sub-section 
(1) of section 148 of the act for any of the products of the Compariy. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (vi) of 
‘the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

(a) The Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues with the appropriate 
authorities, including Goods and: Service Tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, 
Income Tax, Sales Tax and Value Added Tax, duty-of ctistomis, service tax, cess or any other 
statutory dues during the year by the Company with the appropriate authorities whichever is 
applicable & there are no amount due for a period of more than six months from the date they- 
became payable, 7 

‘(b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, Employee’s State 
Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax and Value Added Tax, Wealth Tax, duty of Customs, duty of 
Excise, Cess and other material statutory dues as at March 31, 2024 for a period of more than six 
months from the date they became payable. 

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our checking of records 
étc., there is no transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts and has been surrendered 
or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessment under the Income Tax act, 1961. 

(a)In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company had not 
defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowing to financial institution or other lender. 

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company had not 
been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender. 

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the loans were 
applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained. 

(4) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no funds 
raised on short term basis which have been utilized for long term purpose, 
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xi. 

xii. 

xiv. 

xvi. 

(e) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company had not 
taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligation of its subsidiaries, 
associates or joint ventures. 

(f) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company had not 
raised loans. during ‘the year on the pledge of securities heid in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or 
associate fe companies. 

(a) In our ur opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company had not 
raised money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (Including debt instruments) during 
the year. 

(b} During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of 
shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally convertible). Accordingly, the paragraph , 
3(x)(b) of the order is not applicable to the Company. 

(a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in 
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company and no fraud on the Company, by its officers or 
employees has been noticed or reported during the year. 

(b) During the year no report under sun-section (12) of section 143 of the companies Act has been 
filed by the auditors in form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies(audit and Auditors) © 
Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, i, 

(c) As-represented to us by the management, no whistle blower complaints received by the Company 
during the year. 

To the best of our knowledge and belief, the Company is not Nidhi: Company and therefore, clause 
3(xii) of the order is not applicable to the Company. 

The Company being a private limited Company, section 177 is not applicable to the Company, 
‘however all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 188 of the Act and the .. 
details have been disclosed in Note - 25 of the audited financial statements as required by the 
applicable accounting standards. 

The Company does not have an internal audit system and is not required to have an internal audit 
system as per the provisions of section 138 of the Companies Act 2013. Therefore, the requirement to 
report under clause 3(xiv}(a) and 3(xiv)(b) of the order are not applicable to the Company. 

According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the records 
of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons 
connected with him as referred to in section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

(a) In Our opinion, the company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve 
Bank of India Act, 1934. 

(b) The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities during 
the year.



(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the ; 

Reserve Bank of India. 

xvii. The Cothpany has not incurred cash loss in current financial year as well as in immediately preceding 

financial year. 

xviii. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year and 

accordingly paragraph 3(xviii) of the order is net applicable to the Company. 

xix. On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and - 

payment of financial liabilities, other information as Companying the financial statements, the.” * 

auditor’s knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans, we are of the opinion that no 
material uncertainly exits as on-the that of the audit report that Company is capable of meeting its 

liabilities exiting at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year 

from the balance sheet date . 

xx. The provision of section 135 of the Companies Act 2013 is not applicable to the Company. 

Accordingly, provision of paragraph 30x) (a) and 300) © of the Order are not applicable to the 

‘Company. — 

xxi. There have not been any qualifications or adverse remarks by the auditor in the Companies (Auditor's 
Report) Order (CARO) reports of the company included in the consolidated financial statements. 
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
- 

Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under the heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” of 

our report of even date . 

Report on the Interna! Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company as.of 31° March 
2024 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year 
ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The.Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the 
essential components of internal contrel stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of India (“the ICAI’). ‘These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of . 
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient 
conduct of its business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the 
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, 
and the. timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. . 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's: internal financial controls over financial 
reporting based on our audit. We condicted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal. Financial Controls Over Financial, Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on 
Auditing, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India prescribed under section 143(10) 
of the Act io the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the 
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonablé assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was 
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in ali material respects. 

_ Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
” financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal 

financial controls. over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal: financial” 
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and” 
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of intemal control based on the assessed risk. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide ‘a basis for our 
audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting of the Company. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

A Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting isa process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of standalone financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A 
Company's internal financial contro! over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that 
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that 
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transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation.of standalone financial statements in 
: accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the 
Company are, being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the- 
Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized, - 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the standalone 
finaricial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations .of internal financial controls over financial reporting, includirig the 
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error 
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any. evaluation of the internal financiaf 
controls over firiancial reporting to future periods are subject tp the risk that the internal financial control 
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 
compliancé with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. , 

Opinion 

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company 
has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over.financial reporting and 
such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March 2024,. 
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the. ~ 
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 
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ENTRY INDIA PROJECTS PRIVATE LIMITED 

STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2024 
Anpount in = ‘00 

7 As at AS at 

Particulars Notes 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

L ASSETS 

(1) Non-current assets 

Property, plant and equipment 3 4,24,035 420,557 

Financial Assets 
{i) Investments 4 4,98,010 505,479 

Total Non-Current Assets 9,22.044 926,035 

(2) Current Aasets 

Financial Assets 
G) Investments 5 3,31,394 90,000 
(ii) Trade Receivables 6 686 1,879 
{iii) Cash and cash equivalents 7 1,832 2,14,294 

(iv) Loans 8 21,115 1,54,823 

(¥} Other financial assets 9 1,422 T1436 

Other current assets 10 9,333 6,023 

Total Current Assets 5,65,782 §,38,455 

TOTAL ASSETS ¥2,87,826 14,64,490 

I. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

(1) Equity 
Equity share capital H 15,531 15,531 
Other equity 12 947,635 9,351,081 

Total Equity 963,166 9,46,613 

(2) Liabilities 

Non Current Liabilities 
Financial Liabilities 

{i) Borrowings 13 2,38,485 435,286 

Deferred tax liabilities (net) 1? 58,063 59,551 

Total Non-Current Habilities 296,548 494,537 

Current Liabilities ‘ 
Financial Liabilities 

(i) Borrowings 14 5,071 3,734 
(ii) Other, Financial Liabilities 15 19,534 17,599 

Other Current liabilities 16 609 753 

Current tax liabilites 17 2,898 955 

Total Current liabilities 28,112 23,041 

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 12,587,826 14,6449) 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies & 1&2 

Corporate information 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these standalone financial statements. 

As per our Report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directars 
For Rajiv Jaswant & Co Entry India Projects Private Limited 
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Rajiv Raton. Alok Dhir Madhav Dhir Kuldeep Bhardwaj 
Proprietor Director Director Company Secretary 

Membership No. : 510170 DIN: 00034335 DIN: 07227587 PAN: CGSPB9064P 

Place : Ghaziabad Place : New Dethi 

Dated + 30.05.2024 Dated : 30.05.2024



ENTRY INDIA PROJECTS PRIVATE LIMITED 

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024 

Amount in T ‘000 except per share data 

For the Year Ended For the Year Ended 
Not 

Particulars oes 31 March 224 31 March 2023 
Revenue 

I. Revenue from Operations 18 35,029 36,077 

Tl, Other income 19 22,160 24,870 

HI. Total Income 57,189 60,947 

TV, Expenses 
Employee benefits expense 20 3,705 2,297 

Financial expense 21 18,263 33,358 

Depreciation and amortisation expenses 3 3,212 2,708 

Other expenses 22 8,230 17,865 
Total Expenses (IV} 33,410 §6,227 

Y, Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and tax (I-IV) 23,779 4719 

VI. Exceptional Items - - 

VIL Profit/(loss) before Tax (V-VI} 23,779 4,719 

VIII. Tax expemse: 

1, Current Tax 17 2,900 955 

2. Deferred Tax Charge/(Credit) 17 (25) (49) 
LX. Profit/(Loss} for the year from continulng operations 20,904 3,814 

X. Other comprebensive income for the year 

Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or boss in 

subsequemt periods: 

Net Gain‘(Loss) on equity securities measured at Fair Value through Other 

Comprehensive Income (FYTOCT 23 G84) (42,236) 

Deferred Tax charge/(credit) on gain‘(loss} on FVTOCI on equity securities 7 (1,463) (10,630) 

Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss) for the year (net of tax) (X) (4,351) 1,606) 

XL Total comprehensive income for the year (TX+X) 16.553 (27,792) 

XIL. Earnings per equity share (for continuing operations) 

1. Basic 24 13.46 2.46 

2. Diluted 24 8.52 1.35 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies & Corporate information 1&2 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these standalone financial statements. 

As per our Report of even date attached 

For Rajiv Jaswant & Co 
Chartered Accountants 
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Entry India Projects Private Limited 
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Membership No. : 510170 DIN: 60034335 DIN: 07227587 

Place : Ghaziabad Place : New Delhi 

Dated : 30.05.2024 Dated : 30.05.2024 
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ENTRY ENDIA PROJECTS PRIVATE LIMITED 

AUDITED STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024 
Amount in® ‘O00 

A. Equity Share Capital 

(1) Current reporting period 
Balance at the Changes in Equity |Restated balance at the) Changes im equity | Balance at the end of 

Particutars beginaing of the =| Share Capital due to begiasing of the [share capital durimg) the corrent reporting 

current reporting | prior period errors current reporting the current year period 

period period 

Equity share capital 15,531 = 15,531 - 15,531 

Tatal 15.531 : 15,831 - 15.531 

(2) Previous reporting period 
Balance at the Changes in Equity (Restated balance a{ the) Changes im equity | Balance at the exd of 

beginning of the =| Share Capital due beginning of the share capital duriag| the previous repordig 

Pardenlars previous reporting | prior period errora | previous reporting | the previons year period 

period period 

Equity share capital 15,531 - 15,531 - 15,531 

Total 15.531 = 15.531 . 15.531 

B. Other Equity 

(1) Current reporting period 

Reserves and Surplus Compulsory . FYTOCI- Equity 

Particalaes Securities Premium | Retained Earnings Deb ateren ICH securities a 

Balance at the beginning of the current reporting 2,80,069 60,221 412,300 1,78,492 931,081 
period 
‘Changes in accounting policy or prior period emors . . . . . 

ees wane at eae ene 2,860,069 60,221 4,12,300 1, 78,492 9,31,081 
jreporting period 
Profit /(Loss) for the year 7 20,904 = = 20.904 

‘Other Comprehensive income for the year (net of tax) - - - (4,351) (4.351) 

Total Comprehensive Income for the curremt year - 20,904 . {4,351} 16,553 

Balance at tbe end of the current reporting period 2,80,069 $1,125 4,12,400 1,74,141 9,467,635 

{2) Previous reporting peried 

Reserves and Surplus Compubory FVTOCI- Equity 

Particaiars Securidies Presoium | Retained Earnings | convey web] accurities Total 

Balance at the begioning of the current reporting 2,380,069 56,407 4,12,300 210,098 9,58,873 

Changes in accounting policy of prior period earars 7 . . . . 

ieee balance at the beginning of the current 280,060 56,407 4,12,300 2,10,008 958,873 

[reporting period 
Profit /(Losa) for the year : 3,814 - - 3.814 

Other Comprehensive income for the year (net of tax} - - - 31,606} (31,606) 

Total Comprehensive Income for de current year - 3,814 - (31,606) (27,793) 

Balance at the end of the curremt reporting period 220,069 60,221 412,300 1,78,492 9,31,081 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these standalone financial statements. 

As per our Report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Direstors 

For Raliy Jaswant & Co Entry india Projects Private Limited 

Alok Dhir Madhav Dhir Kuldeep Bhardwaj 

Director Director Company Secretary 

Menibership No. : 510176 DIN: 00034335 DIN: 07227587 PAN: OGSPB9064P 

Place : Ghaziabad Place : New Delhi 

Dated : 30.05.2024 Dated : 30.05.2024



ENTRY INDIA PROJECTS PRIVATE LIMITED 
STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024 

Amount het ‘000 
For the Year Ended For the Year Ended 

— 34 Mareh 2024 31 March 2023 

A. Cash flow from operating activities 
Profit(oss) before tax 23,779 4719 

Adj to cile profit before tax to met cash flows: 

Depreciation 3,212 2,708 

Interest Income (7,249) (14,785) 
Profit on Sale of shares (13,550) - 

Operating Profit Aloss) before working capital adjustments 6,192 (7,358) 

Working Capital Adjus 

‘Changes in trade receivables 1,193 (1,699) 
Changes in other current & Other liabilities 1,792 6,994 
(Changes in other current assets 66,704 (67,342) 

75,880 (69,403) 

Less; Income tax paid (net of refunds) (957) (9,195) 
Cash flow from Operating Activities (A) 74.923 (78.600) 

B. Cash Flow from Investing activities 

Payment for FOR 
Receipts from FDR - 2,01,764 

Payment for Property, Plant & Equipment (6,690) (4,655) 
Payment for CWIE - 1,995 
Purchase of Gold (394) - 

Pirchase of Investments in Securities (3,387,300) (90,000) 
Proceeds from the sale of Investments 1,61,505 - 
Tater Corporate Loans giver 1,33, 709 3,251 
Interest Received 7,249 44,785 

Net cash Dow from (used in) Investing activities (B) (91,921) 127,141 

C. Cash Flow from Finaacing activities 

Proceeds/(Repaid) of Loans from Bank (1,95,464) (9,809) 
Net cash Mow (used in) from financing activities (C) (1.95.464) (9.809) 

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (A+B+C) (212,462) 38,731 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 2.14,254 1,75,563 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR* 1,832 2,14.294 

COMPONENTS OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

Cash on hand 162 23 

Balances with scheduled banks: 
On current accounts 1,670 214271 

1,832 2,14.294 

Change in Liability arising from financing activites 

1 April 2023 Net Cash Flow 31 March 2024 

Borrowing - Non Current (refer note 1) 435,286 (1,96,801} 2,538,485 
Borrowing - Current (refer oote 14) 3,734 1,336 5,071 

439,021 (1,96,.861) 243.556 

Notes: 

1. The cash flow has been prepared under the "indirect method" ag set out in Indian Accounting Standard (IND AS) 7 - Statement of Cash Flaws 

‘The accompanying notes are an integral part of these standalone financial statements. 

As per our Report of even date attached 
For Raliv Jaswant & Co For and oa bebslf of the Board of Dirertors 

Entry India Projects Private Limited 

A 

BACON : 
Rajiv Rattan === Alok Dhis Madhav Dhir 
Proprietor Director Director 
Membership No. : 410170 DIN; 00034335 DIN: 07227587 

Place : Ghaziabad Place : New Delhi 
Dated : 30.05.2024 Dated : 30.05.2024 

Kukleep Bhardwaj 
Company Secretary 
PAN: CGSPB9064P



ENTRY INDIA PROJECTS PRIVATE LIMITED 

Notes to the Standalone Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2024 

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION 

Reporting Entity 

Entry India Projects Private Limited (the “Company”), is primarily engaged in the business of carrying on the 
business of construction of residential houses, commercial buildings, flats and buildings etc. and other allied 
activities. The Company is domiciled and incorporated in India in 23.01.2008 and has its registered office at 
D-55, Defence Colony, New Delhi 110024, India, Non-convertible debentures of the Company are listed on 
the Bombay Stock Exchange of India Limited (BSE). 
The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 were approved by the Board of Directors and 
authorised for issue on 30.05.2024. 

BASIS OF PREPARATION, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, CRITICAL ACCOUNTING 
ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS AND STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 

Statement of Compliance 

In accordance with the notification issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the Company has adopted 

Indian Accounting Standards (referred to as “Ind AS”) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting 

Standards) Rules, 2015 with effect from April 1, 2017. 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS as notified under the Companies 

(Indian Accounting Standards} Rules, 2015 read with Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

2.1 Basis of Preparation 

The financial statements have been prepared on the following basis: 

Basis of preparation 

These financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial 
instruments which are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Historical cost is 
generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services. Fair value 
is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date. Current Assets do not include elements which are 
not expected to be realised within 1 year and Current Liabilities do not include items which are due after 
1 year, the period of 1 year being reckoned from the reporting date. 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS as notified under the 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 read with Section 133 of the Companies Act, 

2013, 

The standalone financial statements are presented in ¥ which is the Company’s functional currency. 

Basis of classification of Current and Nou-Current 

Assets and Liabilities in the balance sheet have been classified as either current or non- current based 

upon the requirements of Schedule III notified under the Companies Act, 2013. 
An asset has been classified as current if 

» It is expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle; 
* It is held primarily for the purpose of trading; 
*Itis expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or 
* It is cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at 
leas ths after the reporting period. >) 
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ENTRY INDIA PROJECTS PRIVATE LIMITED 

Notes to the Standalone Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2024 

2.2 

All other assets are classified as non-current. 
A liability has been classified as current when: 
+ Tt is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle; 
* It is held primarily for the purpose of trading; 
* It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or 
* The company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve 

months after the reporting period. 
All other liabilities are classified as non-current. Current iiabilities include current portion of non-current 

financial liabilities. 

Deferred tax assets/liabilities are classified as non-cwrrent assets and liabilities. 

An Operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in 

cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle. 

Significant Accounting Policies 

A Summary of the significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of the financial statements is 

as given below. These accounting policies have been applied consistently to all periods presented in the 

financial statements. 

(i) Revenue from Operations : 

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the 
Company and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. 

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking in to account 

contractually defined terms of payment excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the 

government, 

Effective April 1, 2018, the Company has applied Ind AS 115, Revenue from Contracts with 
Customers, which establishes comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much and 

when revenue is to be recognised, IND AS 115 replaces IND AS 18 Revenue and IND AS 11 

construction contracts. The company has adopted IND AS 115 using the cumulative catch-up 

transition method. The impact on the adoption of the standard on the financial statement of the 

company is insignificant. 

Other Income 

Interest Income 
Interest income is accrued on a time proportion. 

Dividend Income 
Dividend income is recognised when the Company’s right to receive the amount is established. 

(ii) Property, Plant and Equipment —_
— 

Recognition and initial measurements 

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation (other than freehold 

land) and accurnulated impairment losses, if any. 

All property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost. Cost includes the acquisition cost or 

the cost of construction, including duties and non-refundable taxes, expenses directly related to 

bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for making them operational for their 

intended use and, in the case of qualifying assets, the attributable borrowing costs. Initial estimate of 

smantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located is also 
if — is an obligation to restore it. — 



ENTRY INDIA PROJECTS PRIVATE LIMITED 

Notes to the Standalone Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2024 

(ili) 

(iv) 

(¥) 

Subsequent measurements 

Subsequent expenditure relating to property, plant and equipment is capitalised only when it is 
probable that future economic benefits associated with these will flow to the Company and the cost 
of the item can be measured reliably. 

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's 
carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount. 

De-recognition 

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic 

benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the 
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference 

between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the Statement 

of Profit and Loss. 

Depreciation 

Depreciation is charged to Statement of Profit and Loss so as to expense the cost of assets (other than 

freehold land and properties under construction) less their residual values over their useful lives, 
using the written down method, as per the useful life prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 

2013. 

Leasehold improvements/buildings are amortised over the period of the lease or the useful life of the 

asset, whichever is lower. 

The assets’ useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the Balance Sheet date and the effect of 
any changes in estimates is accounted for on a prospective basis, Assets costing less than “5,000 are 
depreciated fully in the year of purchase. 

Capital work-in progress 

Capital work in progress represents projects under which the property, plant and equipment are not 

yet ready for their intended use and are carried at cost determined as aforesaid. 

Intangible Assets 

Recognition and measurements 

Intangible assets include cost of acquired software. Intangible assets are initially measured at 
acquisition cost including any directly attributable costs of preparing the asset for its intended use. 

Amortization 

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over their estimated useful economic life and 
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. 
Intangible assets are amortised on a written down method over their estimated useful life. A 

rebuttable presumption that the useful life of an Intangible asset will not exceed 3 years from the 

date, when the asset is available for use is considered by the management. 

De-recognition 

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected to 
arise from continued use of the asset. Gains or losses arising from de recognition of an intangible 
asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the 
asset, are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised.



ENTRY INDIA PROJECTS PRIVATE LIMITED 

Notes to the Standalone Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2024 

(vi) Impairment of Non-Financial Assets 

Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in 
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is 
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. 

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing 
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax 
discount rate that reflects current market assessment of the time value of money and the risks specific 
to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted. 

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit} is estimated to be less than its carrying 
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable 
amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash- 
generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the 
increased carrying amount do¢s not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had 
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of 
an impairment loss is recognised immediately in Statement of Profit and Loss. 

{vii) Borrowing costs 

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that 
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as 
part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. 
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that au entity incurs in connection with borrowing 
of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustments 
to the borrowing costs as per the standard. 

(vill) Assets taken on lease 

A Lease in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to the 
Company is classified as operating lease. Payments made under operating lease are charged to the 
Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease unless the payments 
are structured to increase in line with the expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s 
expected inflationary cost increases. 

For leases which include both land and building elements, basis of classification of each element is 
assessed on the date of transition, April 1, 2017, in accordance with Ind AS 101 First-time Adoption 

of Indian Accounting Standard. 

(ix) Previsions 

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or 
constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic 
benefits wilt he required to settle the obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material, 
provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects 
current market assessments of the time value of money and ihe risks specific to the liability. When 
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance 
cost. 

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the 
present obligation at reporting date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the 



ENTRY INDIA PROJECTS PRIVATE LIMITED 

Notes to the Standalone Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2024 

(x) Financia] Instruments 

Financial Assets 

Initial recognition and measurement 

Financial assets are recognised when, and only when, the Company becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the financial instrument. The Company determines the classification of 
its financial assets at initial recognition. 

When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of 
financial assets not at fair value through profit or loss directly attributable transaction costs. 
Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Subsequent measurements 

¢ Debt Instruments - The Company classifies its debt instruments as subsequently measured at 
amortised cost, fair value through Other Comprehensive Income or fair value through profit or 
joss based on its business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow 
characteristics of the financial asset. 

L Financial Assets at amortised costs: 

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets are held for 
collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal 
and interest (SPPI). Interest income from these financial asseis is included as a part of the 
Company’s income in the Statement of Profit and Loss using the effective interest rate method. 

IL Financial assets at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCE) 

Financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value through Other Comprehensive 
income if these financial assets are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for 
selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of 
principal and interest. Movements in the carrying value are taken through Other 
Comprehensive Income, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest 
revenue and foreign exchange gains or losses which are recognised in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously 
recognised in Other Comprehensive Income is reclassified from Other Comprehensive 
Income to the Statement of Profit and Loss. Interest income on such financial assets is 
included as a part of the Company’s income in the Statement of Profit and Loss using the 
effective interest rate method. 

TI]. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) 

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at fair value 
through profit or loss. A gain or loss on such debt instrument that is subsequently measured 
at FVTPL and is not part of a hedging relationship as well as interest income is recognised in 
the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

e Equity Instruments — 

e The Company subsequently measures all equity investments (other than the investment in 
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures which are measured at cost) at fair value. Where the 

Company has elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity investments in Other 
ive Income (“FVOCI"), there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and 

t or loss. Dividends from such investments are recognised in the Statement of Profit 
t income when the Company’s right 1o- receive payment is established. 



ENTRY INDIA PROJECTS PRIVATE LIMITED 

Notes to the Standalone Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2024 

Stage 1; 

Stage 2: 

Stage 3: 

When the equity investment is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised m 
Other Comprehensive Income is reclassified from Other Comprehensive Income to the Retained 
Earnings directly. 

De-recegnition 

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar 
financial assets) is derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when: 

» The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or 

* The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an 
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a 
‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks 
and rewards of the asset, or (b} the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all 
the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset. 

Impairment of financial assets 

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses (ECL) associated with 
its assets carried at amortised cost and FVTOCI debt instruments. The impairment methodology 
applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial 
recognition. 

For trade receivables only, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109 
‘Financial Instruments’, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial 
recognition of the receivables. 

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. 
Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right 
from its initial recognition. 

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company 
categorizes them into Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3, as described below: 
When financial asseis are first recognized, the Company recognizes an allowance based on 12 

months ECLs. Stage } financial assets also include facilities where the credit risk has improved and 

the financial assets have been reclassified from Stage 2. 

When a financial assets has shown a significant increase in credit risk since origination, the 

Company records an allowance for the LTECLs. Stage 2 loans also include facilities, where the 

credit risk has improved and the financial assets has been reclassified from Stage 3. 

Financial assets considered credit-impaired. The Company records an allowance for the LTECLs. 

Financial Liabilities 

Initial Recognition 

Financial liabilities are recognised when, and only when, the Company becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the financial instrument, The Company determines the classification of its 
financial liabilities at initial recognition. All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value, 
plus, in the case of financial liabilities not at fair value through profit or loss directly attributable 
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ENTRY INDIA PROJECTS PRIVATE LIMITED 

Notes to the Standalone Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2024 

(xi) 

Subsequent Measurement 

After initial recognition, financial liabilities that are not carried at fair value through profit or loss 
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Gains and losses 
are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the liabilities are derecognised, and through 
the amortisation process. 

De-recognition 

A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or 
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same 
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially 
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a de-recognition of the original liability 
and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is 
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Offsetting of financial instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance 
sheets if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an 
intention to settle on a net basis, to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

Cash and Cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand aad short-term 
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk 
of changes in value. 

{xii} Foreign Currency Translation: 

The functional currency of the Company is Indian rupee. 

]. Initial Recognition 

On initial recognition, all foreign currency transactions are recorded by applying to the 
foreign currency amount the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign 
currency at the date of the transaction. 

Il. Subsequent recognition 

As at the reporting date, non-monetary items which are carried at historical cost and 
denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the 
transaction. All non-monetary items which are carried at fair value denominated in a foreign 
currency are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was 
determined. 

Income and expenses in foreign currencies are recorded at exchange rates prevailing on the 
date of the transaction. Foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities are 
translated at the exchange rate prevailing on the balance sheet date and exchange gains and 
losses arising on settlement and restatement are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Effective April 1, 2018, the Company has adopted Appendix B to Ind AS 21, Foreign 

Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration which clarifies the date of transaction for 

the purpose of determining the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, 

expense or income when an entity has received or paid advance consideration in a foreign 

eiicy. The effect on account of adoption of this amendment was insignificant. 
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ENTRY INDIA PROJECTS PRIVATE LIMITED 

Notes to the Standalone Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2024 

(aiii} Employee benefits 

I. Short Term Obligations: The costs of all short-term employee benefits (that are expected to 
be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render 
the related service) are recognised during the period in which the employee renders the 
related services. The accruals for employee entitlements of benefits such as salaries, bonuses 
and annual leave represent the amount which the Company has a present obligation to pay as 
a result of the employees’ services and the obligation can be measured reliably. The accruals 
have been calculated at undiscounted amounts based on current salary levels at the Balance 
Sheet date. 

Il. Compensated Absences: Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within 
twelve months after the end of the period in which the employee renders the related services 
are recognised as an actuarially determined liability at the present value of the defined 
benefit obligation at the Balance Sheet date. 

(xiv) Taxes 

Current Income Tax and Deferred Tax 

Tax expense comprises current tax and the net change in the deferred tax asset or liability during the 
year. Current and deferred tax are recognised in statement of profit and loss, except when they relate 
to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the 
current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, 
respectively. 

Current Tax 

Current tax expenses are accounted in the same period to which the revenue and expenses relate. 
Provision for current income tax is made for the tax liability payable on taxable income after 
considering tax allowances, deductions and exemptions determined in accordance with the applicable 
tax rates and the prevailing tax laws. Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset when there 
is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle the 
asset and the liability on a net basis. 

Deferred Tax 

Deferred income tax is recognised using the balance sheet approach. Deferred income tax assets and 
liabilities are recognised for deductible and taxable temporary differences arising between the tax 
base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount in financial statements, except when the 
deferred income tax arises from the initial recognition of goodwill, an asset or liability in a transaction 

that is not a business combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable profits or loss at the time 
of the transaction. 

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will de 
available against which the deductible temporary differences and the carry forward of unused tax 
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, 

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences except m respect 
of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests 
in joint ventures where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference can be controlled and it 
is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and reduced to the 
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to 
of the deferred income tax asset to be utilised. “ Sank 
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ENTRY INDIA PROJECTS PRIVATE LIMITED 

Notes to the Standalone Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2024 

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in 
which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been 
enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current 
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same 
taxation authority and the Company intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis. 

Minin Alternative Tax (“MAT”) credit forming part of Deferred tax assets is recognised as an 
asset only when and to the extent there is reasonable certainty that the Company will pay normal 
income tax during the specified period. Such asset is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and the 
cartying amount of the MAT credit asset is written down to the extent there is no longer a reasonable 
certainty to the effect that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period. 

(xv) Earnings Per Share 

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to 
equity shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of the equity shares outstanding 
during the year, 

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, net profit or loss for the year attributable to 
equity shareholders of the Company and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during 
the year is adjusted for the effect of all dilutive potential equity shares. 

2.4 Critical accounting estimates and judgements 

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement 
principles of Ind AS requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions, that affect the 
Teported balances of assets and liabilities, disclosures relating to contingent liabilities as at the date of the 
financial statements and the reported amounts of income and expenses for the years presented. Actual 
tesults may differ from these estimates. 

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods 
affected. 

In particular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in 
applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the 
financial statements pertain to: 

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets: The Company reviews the useful 
life of property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets as at the end of each reporting period. This 
reassessment may result in change in depreciation expense in future periods. 

Impairment testing: Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets that are subject to amortisation/ 
depreciation are tested for impairment when events occur or changes in circumstances indicate that the 
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is less than its carrying value. The recoverable amount of 
cash generating units is higher of vaiue-in-use and fair value less cost to sell. The calculation involves use 
of significant estimates and assumptions which includes tumover and earnings multiples, growth rates 
and net margins used to calculate projected future cash flows, risk-adjusted discount rate, future economic 
and market conditions. 

Impairment of investments: The Company reviews its carrying value of investments carried at cost or 
amortised cost annually, or more frequently when there is indication for impairment. If the recoverable 
amount is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is accounted for. 
Income Taxes: Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is regarded as Pom 
deductible temporary differences can be realised. The Company estimates deferred K palssets d 
liabilities based on current tax laws and rates and in certain cases, business plans, sine aa 



ENTRY INDIA PROJECTS PRIVATE LIMITED 

Notes to the Standalone Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2024 

management’s expectations regarding the manner and timing of recovery of the related assets. Changes in 
these estimates may affect the amount of deferred tax liabilities or the valuation of deferred tax assets and 
thereby the tax charges in the Statement of Profit or Loss. 

Provision for tax liabilities require judgements on the interpretation of tax legislation, developments in 
case law and the potential outcomes of tax audits and appeals which may be subject to significant 
uncertainty. Therefore the actual results may vary from expectations resulting in adjustments to 
provisions, the valuation of deferred tax assets, cash tax settlements and therefore the tax charge in the 
Statement of Profit or Loss. 

Litigation: From time to time, the Company is subject to legal proceedings the ultimate outcome of each 
being always subject to many uncertainties inherent in litigation. A provision for litigation is made when 
it is considered probable that a payment will be made and the amount of the loss can be reasonably 
estimated. Significant judgement is made when evaluating, among other factors, the probability of 
unfavourable outcome and the ability to make a reasonable estimate of the amount of potential loss. 
Litigation provisions are reviewed at each accounting period and revisions made for the changes in facts 
and circumstances. 

Defined benefit plans: The cost of the defined benefit plans and the present value of the defined benefit 
obligation are based on actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method, An actuarial valuation 
involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These 
include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates, Due to the 
complexities involved in the valuation and its long term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly 
sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date. 

2.5 Recent Accounting Standards (IND AS) 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”), through Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment 
Rules, 2019 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rules, has notified the 
following new and amendments to Ind AS which are effective from April 1, 2019: 

Ind AS 116, Leases: 

Ind AS 116 will replace the existing ieases standard, Ind AS 17, Leases, and related interpretations. The 
standard sets out the principles for ihe recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for 
both parties to a contract i.e., the lessee and the lessor. Ind AS 116 introduces a single lessee accounting 
model and requires the lessee to recognize assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more than 
twelve months, unless the underlying asset is of low value. Currently, operating lease expenses are charged 
to the Statement of Profit and Loss, The standard also contains enhanced disclosure requirements for 
lessees, Ind AS 116 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in Ind AS 17. 

The effective date for the adoption of Ind AS 116 is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2019. 

The standard permits two possible methods of transition: 

+ Full retrospective — Retrospectively to each prior period presented applying Ind AS 8, Accounting Policies, 

Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors 

* Modified retrospective - Retrospectively, with the cumulative effect of initially applying the standard 

recognized at the date of initial application Under modified retrospective approach, the lessee records the 
lease lability as the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted at the incremental 

borrowing rate and the right of use asset either as : 

+ Its carrying amount as if the standard had been applied since the commencement date, but discounted at the 
lessee’s incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application, or An amount equal to the lease 

liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments related to that lease recognized 
under Ind AS 17 immediately before the date of initial application. 

The effect on adoption of Ind AS 16 would be insignificant in the standalone financial ey SON 
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ENTRY INDIA PROJECTS PRIVATE LIMITED 

Notes to the Standalone Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2024 

Ind AS 12, Appendix C, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments 

On March 30, 2019, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Ind AS 12, Appendix C, Uncertainty 

over Income Tax Treatments which is to be applied while performing the determination of taxable profit (or 
loss}, tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates, when there is uncertainty over income 

tax treatments under Ind AS 12. According to the appendix, companies need to determine the probability of 
the relevant tax authority accepting each tax treatment, or group of tax treatments, that the companies have 
used or plan to use in their income tax filing which has to be considered to compute the most likely amount 
or the expected value of the tax treatment when determining taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax 
losses, unused tax credits and tax rates. The standard permits two possible methods of transition 

+ Full retrospective approach — Under this approach, Appendix C will be applied retrospectively to each prior 
reporting period presented in accordance with Ind AS 8, Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting 
Estimates and Errors, without using hindsight, and 

* Retrospectively with cumulative effect of initially applying Appendix C recognized by adjusting equity on 
initial application, without adjusting comparatives The effective date for adoption of Ind AS 12 Appendix C 
is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2019. The Company adopted the standard on April 1, 2019 
and has decided to adjust the cumulative effect in equity on the date of initial application i.e. April 1, 2019 
without adjusting comparatives. 

The effect on adoption of Ind AS 12 Appendix C is insignificant in the standalone financial statements. 

Amendment to Ind AS £2, Income taxes: 

On March 30, 2019, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued amendments to the guidance in Ind AS 12, 
Income Taxes, in connection with accounting for dividend distribution taxes. The amendment clarifies that 
an entity shall recognize the income tax consequences of dividends in profit or loss, other comprehensive 
income or equity according to where the entity originally recognized those past transactions or events. 

Effective date for application of this amendment is annual period beginning on or after April 1, 2019. 

The effect on adoption of Ind AS 12 Appendix C would be insignificant in the standalone financial 
statements. 

Ind AS 109- Prepayments Features with Negative Compensation 

The amendments relate to the existing requirements in Ind AS 109 regarding termination rights in order to 
allow measurement at amortised cost (or, depending on the business model, at fair value through other 
comprehensive income) even in the case of negative compensation payments. The company does not expect 
this amendment to have any impact on its financial statements. 

Amendment to Ind AS 19, Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement: 

On March 30, 2019, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued amendments to Ind AS 19, Employee Benefits, 
in connection with accounting for plan amendments, curtaiiments and settlements. 

The amendments require an entity: 

+ To use updated assumptions to determine current service cost and net interest for the remainder of the 
period after a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement; and 

+ To recognize in profit or loss as part of past service cost, or a gain or loss on settlement, any reduction in a 
surplus, even if that surplus was not previously recognized because of the impact of the asset ceiling. 

Effective date for application of this amendment is annual period beginning on or after April 1, 2019. The 
Company does not have any impact on account of this amendment. 



ENTRY INDIA PROJECTS PRIVATE LIMITED 

Notes to the Standalone Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2024 

IND AS 23- Borrowing Costs 

The amendments clarify that if any specific borrowing remains outstanding after the related asset is ready for 
its intended use or sale, that borrowing becomes part of the funds that an entity borrows generally when 
calculating the capitalisation rate on general borrowings. The company does not expect any impact from this 
amendment. 

IND AS 28- Long term interests in Associates and Joint Ventures 

The amendments clarify that an entity applies Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, to long term interests in an 
associate or joint venture that form part of the net investment in the associate or joint venture but to which the 
equity method is not applied. Fhe company does not currently have any long term interests in associates and 
joint ventures. 

IND AS 103- Business Combinations and Ind AS 111-Joint Arrangements 

The amendments to Ind AS 103 relating to re-measurement clarify that when as entity obtains control of a 
business that is a joint operation, it re-measures previously held interests in that business. The amendments to 
Ind AS 111 clarify that when an entity obtains joint control of a business that is a joint operation, the entity 
does not re-measure previously held interests in that business. The company will apply the pronouncement if 
and when it obtains control/joint control of a business that is a joint operation. 
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ENTRY INDIA PROJECTS PRIVATE LIMITED 

Note 4 

INVESTMENTS- NON CURRENT 

Investments in unquoted equity Instruments carried at cost 
Investments in associates 

42,28,250 (31 March 2023 - 42,28,250 of F 10 each fully paid up of Cygnet Projects Pvt. Ltd, 

investments in ¢quity instruments carried at fair value through other comprehensive Income (OCI 
Unquoted equity instruments 
7,78,000 (31 March 2023 - 7,78,000) of € 10 each fully paid up of Ammadoes Trading and Consultants 
Pvt. Lid. 

2,70,000 (31 March 2023 -2,70,000) of Z 10 each fully paid up Class-B of Ammadvoes Trading and 
Consultants Pvt. Ltd. 

Nil (31 March 2023- 12,61,000) € 10 each, fully paid up equity shares of Sri Parthasarthy Infrastructure 
Pvt. Lid. 

10,20,000 { 31 March 2023- 950,900) = 10 each, fully paid up equity shares of Alchemist Assets 
Reconstruction Company Limited 

20,536,005 (31 March 2023 - 20,56,005) of © 10 each fully paid up of Shiva Consultants Pvt. Ltd, 

23,96,263 (31 March 2023- 23,96,263) Z 10 each, fully paid up equity shares of Decean Chronicals 
Holdings Ltd. 

66,740 ( 31 March 2023- 3,90,000) € 10 each, fully paid up equity shares of Cirrus Chemicals Pvt Lad. 

Total 

Aggregate amount of Unquoted Investments 
Total 

Note 5 

INVESTMENT-CURRENT 

At Amortised Cost 
362 (Previous year 100} CCDs of Rs.1,00,000/- each, fully paid, of Sri Parathasarthy Infrastructure Pvt. 

Lid. 
200 {Previous year Nil} CCDs of Rs. 1,00,000/- each, fully paid, of Power Metal and Alloys Pvt. Lid. 
213 (Previous year Nil) CCDs of Rs. 1,00,000/- each, fully paid, of Ammadoes Consultants & Trading Pvt. 
Led 
2525 (Previous year Nil) CCDs of Rs. ,00,000/- each, fully paid, of Asoksundri & Infrastructure Pvt, Ltd. 

Investment in Debt Assign Indraprastha Gas Ltd. 
investment in Gold 

Total 

Note 6 (a) 

TRADE RECEIVABLES 

Trade Receivables considered pood - Unsecured; 

Total 

Amonnt in? ‘000 

As at As at 
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

68,709 68,709 

36,480 35,337 

12,666 12,264 

- 14,972 

62,220 59,850 

3,16,563 3,06,476 

0 0 

1,377 7,870 

498.010 5.005.479 

458,010 5,05,479 

4,98,010 5,05,479 

As at As at 
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

36,900 10,000 

20,000 - 

21,600 - 

2,52,500 : 

- 80,000 
394 - 

3.31394 $0,000 

As at Asat 
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

686 1,879 

686 1,379 



ENTRY INDIA PROJECTS PRIVATE LIMITED 

Note 6(b) 
Trade rer agelng as at March 31, 2024 Amount tn "000 

Not Due for Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

5.No. Particulars Lameemes Payment Lass than 6 Months | 6Months-dyear| 1-2years | 2-3 years yh 3 

1 [Undisputed Trade receivables . 6n6 . 6E6 
-considered good 

2 Undisputed Trade receivables - which . 

have significant Increase in credit risk 

3 Undisputed Trade receivables - credit . . . . 

impaired 
4 Disputed Trade receivables . . . 

considered pood 

5 Disputed Trade receivables - which . . . 

have significant increase in credit risk 

Disputed Trade recetvables - credit . 7 
& + + . - - 

impaired 
Gross + 686 : a6 

Trade recelvables agetng as at March 31, 2023 
Not Due for ‘Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

ss Unbilled | “payment. | GessthanéMonths | 6Months-Lyear | 1-Zyears | 2-3 years — 3 Total 

1 Undispured Trade receivables . 1879 . . 1,879 

considered good 

2 Undisputed Trade receivables - which . . . . 
fave significant increase in credit risk 

q [Undisputed Trade receivables - credit . . . . . 

impaired 
4 Disputed Trade recelvables . . . . . 

—considered good 

5 Disputed Trade receivables - which . . . . 

have significant increase in credit risk 

Disputed Trade receivables - credit . . 
§ lmpatrea : . 

1,879 - 5 1,879 

a
e
,



ENTRY INDIA PROJECTS PRIVATE LIMITED 

Note7 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

Balance with banks : 
In current account 

Cash on hand 

Total 

Note & 

LOANS - CURRENT 

Unsecured, considered geod 

Other Loans and Advances 

Inter Corporate Loans - Related Party [Refer Note.26] 

Inter Corporate Loans - Other 

Total 

Note 9 

GTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS - CURRENT 

(Unsecured, considered good) 

Security Deposits 
Interest Receivable from HSES 

Total 

Note 10 

OTHER - CURRENT ASSETS 

(Unsecured, considered good) 

Balance with Revenue Authorities 
Advances for Expenses 

Total 

Ag at As at 

31 Mareh 2024 31 March 2023 

1,670 2,134,271 
162 23 

1,832 2,14,294 

As at As at 

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

10,000 94,823 

11,115 60,000 

21,115 1.54823 

Asat Asat 

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

1,344 71,362 
i: 74 

1,422 T1436 

Agat As at 

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

9,287 5,910 
45 H3 

9,333 6.023 

) /



ENTRY INDIA PROJECTS PRIVATE LIMITED 

Amount in % 000 

Particulars As at As at 

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

Note 11 

EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL 

Authorised 
11,00,000 (31 March 2023 - 11,00,000) equity shares of 7 10 each 11,000 11,000 

fully paid up 
10,00,000 (31 March 2023 - 10,00,000) Class B equity shares of T 10 10,000 10,000 

each fully paid up 
21,000 21,000 

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up 

10,35,000 (31 March 2023 - 10,35,000} equity shares of = 10 each 10,350 10,350 

fully paid up 

5,18,134 (31 March 2023 - 5,18,134) Class B equity shares of = 10 5,181 5,181 

each fully paid up 
15,531 15531 

a Reconcilation of shares outstanding at the beginning and end of reporting period 

Equity Shares As at As at 
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

No of Shares Amount No of Shares) Amount 
At the beginning of the period 15,53,134 15,531 15,53,134 15,531.34 

Issued during the year : - - . 

Outstanding at the end of the period 18,53,134 15,531 15,53,134 15,531 

(b) The Company has ordinary equity shares & class B equity shares, both having par value of Rs.10 each. Each holder of both classes of equity shares is 

entitled to same rights in all respects except that the Class B Equity shares shall carry differential yoting rights. 

(c) Details of Shares held by Shareholders holding more than 5% of agy sregate Shares in the Company 

Chass of shares/Name of Shareholder As at 31st Mareh 2024 As at 3ist Mareh 2023 

Equity shares with voting rights Number of shares % of Holding | Number of shares | % of Holding 

Ordinary Equity Shares: 

Alok Dhir 799,675 51.49% 799,675 51.49% 
Maneesha Dhir 2,08.450 13.42% 2,08.450 13.42% 
Class B Equity Shares: 

M/s Shiva Consultants Pvt. Ltd. 3,67, 874 23,69% 3,67,874 23.69% 
M/s Cygnet Projects Private Limited 98.446 6.34% 98,446 6.34% 

(d) Shareholding of Promoters 

As at March 31, 2023 

Shares held by promoters at the end of the year % Change 

Promoter name 
Year ended No. of Shares % of Total during the 

Shares year 

7,99,675 5149 
Alok Dhir As at March 31, 2024 . 

7,99,675 51.49 

\ 
} 



ENTRY INDIA PROJECTS PRIVATE LIMITED 

Amount ia 7 ‘HO 

Note 12 

OTHER EQUITY 

Particulars. As at As at 

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

Retained Earnings 
Balance at the beginning of the year 60,221 56,407 

Profit / (Loss) for the year 20,904 3,814 
Other Comprehensive income for the year = - 

Balance at the end of the Year $1,125 60,221 

Securities Premivm 
Balance at the beginning of the year 2,80,069 2,80,069 

Add: On issue of Equity Shares - . 

Balance at the end of the Year 280,069 2,30.069 

Compulsory Convertible Debemtares [CCDs]* 

Balance at the beginming of the year 4,12,500 412,300 
Add: Issued during the year : 
Balance at the end of the Year 4.12,360 4,17.300 

*Non listed, unsecured, 0% coupon rate, comvertible within 10 years from the date of issue, Face value of Rs. 1 Lakhs each, fully paid up, 

FYTOCI Reserve 

Balance at the beginning of the year 1,78,492 2,10,098 
Add/ Less: Movement during the year (Net of Tax) 4351 (31,606) 

Balance at the end of the Year 1,74,141 1,78,492 

Total 9,47, 635 931,081 

Note 13 

BORROWINGS 
Particulars Asat As at 

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

BORROWINGS « NON CURRENT 
(a) Debenture 

Unsecared 

0% 1,000 (31 March 2023-1,000) Listed Non Convertible Debentures-Listed (NCDs) of Rs.100,000 cach fully 100,000 1,00,000 

paid up# 

{b) Term Loans 

Secured 

From Bank * 126,180 3,35,286,23 
From NBFC ** 4,305.75 - 

(c} Unsecured Loans from Related parties*** 750 - 

Total 238,485 4,35,286 

# Unsecured, Zero Coupon, Listed on BSE, Nou Convertible Redeemable Debentures of Rs.1,00,000 cach, fully paid, which are redeemable in 10 years. 

* Secured against Property of the Company, @ 9% Gin P/Y¥ 2022-23 @10.40%) floating interest rate fox a cemaning tenure of 135 EMI's of Rs.13.05 lakhs cach. 

** Secured against vehicles of the Company, @8.64% (in P/Y 2022-23 Nil) floating interest rate for a remaning tenure of 60 EMT's of Rs.1.19 lakh each. 

*** Unsecured loan from related party of the Company, @ 9% (in P/Y 2022-23 Nil) interest rate, repayable within 1 to 5 Year, 

Note 14 

BORROWINGS 
Particulars 

BORROWINGS - CURRENT 
{a) Term Loams 

Secured 

From Bank * 
From NBFC ** 

Total 

Ag at Ag at 

31 March 2024 34 March 2023 

4,107 3,734 
oh4 - 

5,071 3.734 
* Secured against Property of the Company, @ 9% (in P/Y¥ 2022-23 @10.40%) floating interest rate for a semaning tenure of 185 EMI's of Rs.13.05 lakhs each. 

ay n yg Sidi Cus ATH egpany, 8.64% (in PY 2822.23 Nil Hoang interest mic fora remmning soma of 6D EMTS of R119 iakh each 

iy ‘A 
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ENTRY INDIA PROJECTS PRIVATE LIMITED 
Amount in 7 "000 

Note 15 

OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 
Particulars As at As at 

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

Expenses Payable 707 415 

Security Deposit 15,099 15,099 

Interest Accrued on Bank Loan 728 2,085 

Payable to Related Party for purpose of Investment in CCD 3,000 . 

Total 19,534 17,599 

Note 16 

OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Particulars Ag at Asat 

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

Statutory Dues Payables 609 753 

Total 605 733 

Note 17 

CURRENT TAX LIABILITY: 
Particulars Ag at Asat 

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

Opening Balance 955 10,644 

Less: Tax Adjusted (955) (9,195) 

- £1,449) 

Add ; Current Year Tax 2,898 355 

Total 2,898 555 

Tax discloure 

The major components of income tax expense for the years ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023 are: 

Particalars As at Asat 

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

(a) Profit/(loss) before tax 23,779 4,719 

Current tax: 
Current tax on profits for the year 2,900 955 

Current tax expense 2,900 955 

Deferred tax charge/(credit): 
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences 

~On account of Depreciation {23} (49) 

Total Income tax expense/(income) reported in the statement of profit or loss 2.875 905 

Other comprehensive income! (loss) section 
Deferred tax charge/(credit): (1,463) (10,630) 

Imcome tax charged/(credited) to other comprehensive income/ (loss} (1,463) (10,634) 



ENTRY INDIA PROJECTS PRIVATE LIMITED 

(b) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiptied by India’s domestic tax rate for 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023 

Particalars Asat Asat 

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

Profié/(Loss) before tax 23,779 4,719 

At statutory income tax rate 25.17% 25.17% 
Income tax expense calculated at statutory income tax rate 3,985 1,188 

Tax effect of amounts -Credit which are not deductible/(taxable) in calculating taxable income: 

Effect of Expenses not allowed for tax punposes 

Other differences due to Depreciation 26 49 
Other differences dus to disallowance 15 (283) 
Other differences due to capital gain 3,127) - 

Deferred Tax charge/(eredit) due to FYTOCI (1,463) (10,630) 

Deferred Tax charge/(credit) other than due to FYTOCI (25) {49} 
Short tax of the previous year 2 - 
Total adjustments (4,573) (10,912) 

Income tax expense including Impact of Other Comprehensive Income 1412 (9,725) 

(c} Deferred tax liability/(Asset} 

Particulars Agat Agat 

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

The balamce comprises temporary differences attributable to: 

-On Property, plant and equipment impact On difference between tax depreciation & books depreciation (506) (481) 
“On gain/{loss) on FYTOC] on equity securities $8,568 60,032 

Deferred Tax Lighility/(Assets} 58,063 59,351 



ENTRY INDIA PROJECTS PRIVATE LIMITED 

Amount in 7 000 

Note 1 
A. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS 

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended 

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

Rental Income 35,029 25,629 

Revenue from the sale of services - 10,448 

Total 35,029 36,077 

Note 19 
OTHER INCOME 

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended 
31 March 2024 34 March 2023 

Profit on sale of Investment 13,550 . 
Interest Income- Inter Corporate Loans 7,249 14,785 

Interest Income- FDR 1,262 8,548 
Interest Income- Others 99 88 
Reversal of provision of Income tax - 1,449 

Total 22.160 24,870 

Total Interest income (Caleulated using the effective interest method) for financial assets that sre 

not at fair value through profit or loss 

In relation to financial assets classified at amortised cost 7,249 14,785 

Total 7249 14,785 

Note 20 

EMPLOYEES BENEFIT EXPENSES 

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended 
31 March 2024 March 2023 

Salary 3,671 2,284 

Staff Welfare -35 13 

Total 3,708 2,297 

Note 21 

FINANCIAL EXPENSES 

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended 
31_March 2024 31 March 2023 

Interest on Loan from Bank 13,227 30,939 

Taterest on loan from related party 20 2,419 
Processing fee on Loan ftom Bank 16 . 

Total 13,263 33,358 

Note 22 

OTHER EXPENSES 

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended 
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

Advertisement Expenses 78 70 

Legal and professional* 5,351 1,340 

Commission & Brokerage - 1,850 

Municipal Tax 1,122 12,837 

Rates and taxes 4 22 

Repair & Maintenance Expenses 222 268 

Electricity Expenses 171 264 
Interest On Government Dues 28 32 

Lease Deed Exp. - 311 

Security Guards Expenses 856 . 

Miscellaneous Expenses 398 600 

Total §,230 17,865 

*Payments to auditors 

-for Statutory Audit fees 65 65 

-for Tax Audit fees x” - 

-for Company law matters - - 

~for Other matters 120 88 

Total 715 153 

Note 23 
« For the year ended For the year ended 

Statement of other comprehensive income 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

(i) [tems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss—— 

FVOTCI - on equity securities BO / PY oy (3,814) (42,236) 
Total C, Nat Cafe (3,814) (42,236)
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ENTRY INDIA PROJECTS PRIVATE LIMITED 

Note: 2b} 

The key ratios for the years ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 as per reguiaratocies requirements are aa follows: 

Amount in? "06 

Particulars Numerator Denominator ar as 31 March, mas aie {in| Reasons for more than 25% 

nay ratio Current assets Current liabilities 13.01 23.37 -44.32%| Due to decrease in current 

assets during the year, current 

2024 3,65,782 28,112 ratio is decreased 
2023 5,38,455 23,041 

(ime ratio | paid up Debt Capital | Shareholder’s equity* 0.31 057 -45,99%| Due to decrease in debt during 
the year, Debt-Equity ratio is 

2024 243,556 7,89,025 

2023 4,39,021 7,068,121 

Debt service Rerlag, avellabie‘tor Debt service 6.21 46 +$4,23%| Due to repyment of borrowing 
coverage ratlo debt service inting the debt service 

2024 45,253 2,13,727 coverage ratio is deoreased 
2023 40,785 88,168 

(ROD te nw Net profits after taxes inland ‘ 2.68% 0.50% 429.38%| Due to increase in net profit 

2024 20,904 7,78,573 fhe yest; ROE 8 

2023 3,814 7,66,214 

Taventory turnover Cost of Goods Sold Average Inventory - - 

2024 : - . 
2023 - - 

Trade receivables Revenue from Due to decrease in trade 
turnover ratio aqerations Trade receivable 51,06 19,20 165.91% receivable during the year end, 

Trade receivable tumover ratio 
2024 35,029 686 is mcreased. 
2023 36,077 1,879 

Trade payables Purchases of services 

turnover ratio and other expenses Trade payables . . . 
2024 - - 

2023 - = 

Net capital turnover Revenue from Average working 

ratio (in %} operations capital a2 badahe 18.36% . 

2024 35,029 4,26,542 

2023 36,077 §,22,147 

D profit ratio (ia Net profit Total Income 36.55% 6.26% 484.06%| Due to increase in net profit 

2034 20,904 57,189 ering ea yar, et pect ti 
2023 3,814 60,947 : 

Return on Capital * 

Employed (RoCE) parsing bets interest Capital employed** 3.44% 2.64% 26.34%) Bue to increase in EBIT 

(in %) during the year, there is 

2024 42,042 12,59,714 increase in RoC 
2023 38,078 14,41,450 

Return on Income generated from dn current year, profit earn on 
Investment (in %) investments Average Investments 1.0% 0.00% 10.00% sale of investment, whereas in 

2024 13,550 712,441 oe ved fioon iauestmonte 
2023 : 57,15,96,616 carn investments. 

*Shareholder’s equity is total of equity share capital and other equity reduced by FYTOCT. 
**Capital employed is total assets reduced by current liabilities. 
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ENTRY INDIA PROJECTS PRIVATE LIMITED 

Note: 29%) 

Amount in 7 ‘106 

The regulatory disclosures for the years ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 as per Schedule III of Companies Act, 2013 are as follows: 

Wilful Defaulter 
The Company is not declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other any ender in the financial years ending on Mar-31, 2024 and Mar-31, 

2023. 

Details of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency 

The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the financial years ended March 31, 2024 aud March 31, 2023. 

Registration of Charges 
There is no charge pending for registration till 31.03.2024. 

Details of Benami Property Held 

No proceedings have been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 

1988) and rules made thereunder in the financial years ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023. 

Relationship with Struck off Companies 

Transactions with companies whose names have been struck off under section 248 of Companies Act, 2013 or section 360 of Companies Act, 1956 in the financial 

years ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 are given below: 

Balance outstanding as at sanchin wi 
Name of the struck off company 71.03.2024 tL03.2023 Relationship with the Struck off company 

FGT Exim Pvt. Lid. Holding 490 CCD of Bs.1 lakh each Holding the Compulsory Convertible Debenture (CCD) issued by 

the Company. 

Corporate Social Responsibility 

The Company has not been covered under section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

Compliance with number of layers of companies 

The Comany does not have any subsidiary prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act for the financial years ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 

2023. 

Compliance with approved Scheme{s) of Arrangements 
No Scheme of Arrangements has been applicable in terms of sectlons 230 to 237 of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, no disclosure Is required in this 

regard. 

Undisclosed income 
There are no transactions not recorded in the books of accounts. 

Events after reporting date 
There have been no events after the reporting date. 

Expenditure or Income in foreign currency 

There are no income or expenditure in foreign currency in the current as well as previous year. 

Utilisation of Borrowed funds and share premium 
The Company has not advanced or leaned or invested {either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) in any other 

persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”) with the understanding, whether recorded In writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary 

shall lend or invest in party identified by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries). The Company has also not received any fund from any parties 
(Funding Party) with the understanding that the Company shall whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified by or on 

behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

Loans or advances in the nature of loans are granted to promoters, Directors, KMPs and the related parties 

The Company has not granted loans or advances to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related parties, which are repayble on demand or without specifying 

any terms or period of repayment. 

Ratings assigned by credit rating agencies and migration of ratings during the year 

Instruments Credit rating agency As at wen a, As “ ver 

Non Convertible Debentures Brickwork Ratings ladia Pvt. Ltd. BWR B- NLA. 



ENTRY INDLA PROJECTS PRIVATE LIMITED 

Note 30 
THE DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO THE MICRO, SMALL AND MEDIUM ENTERPRISES DEVELOPMENT ACT, 2006, [MSMED 
ACT| AS AT MARCH 31, 2024 AND MARCH 41, 2023 1S AS UNDER: 

S.No, [Particulars On March 31, 2024 | On March 31, 2023 

1__|Principal amount remaining unpaid - = 

2 __[Interest due thereon remaining unpaid - = 

3) [interest paid by the Company in terms of Section 16 of the MSMED Act, along with the} - - 

amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day 

Interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid} as - 

but beyond the appointed day during the period) but without adding interest specified onder] 

the MSMED Act 
Interest accrued and remainitig unpaid = - 

6 = | Further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date] = - 

hwhen the interest dues as above are actuatly paid to the small enterprises or the purpose o! 

disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23. 

This information has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company. 

Note 33 Previous year figures have been regrouped and / or rearranged wherever necessary to make comparable with current year figures. 

As per our Report of even date attached 
For Rajlv Jaswant & Co Fer and on behali of the Board of Directors 

Chartered Accountants Entry India Projects Private Limlted 

Co - —? 
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Alok Dir Madhav Dhir Kokicep Bhardhraj 
; Director Director Company Secretary 

Membership No. : 510170 DIN: 00034335 DIN: 07227587 PAN: CGSPB9064P 

Place : Ghaziabad Place : Ghaziabad 

Dated : 30.05.2024 Dated : 30.05.2024



Ox RAJU JASWANT & CO. 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

Off : RTF-32, Royal Tower Market, Shipra Suncity, Indirapuram, Ghaziabad-201 014 
Ph No: 0120-431 7371, 9717409122 E-Mail : rajivjaswantandco@gmail.com 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

TO The Members of 
ENTRY (NDIA PROJECTS PRIVATE LIMITED 

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

OPINION 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Entry India Projects Private 
Limited (hereinafter referred to as the ‘the Company”) and its associate (the Company and its associate 
together referred to as “the Group”}, which comprise the consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 32, 
2024, and the consolidated statement of Profit and Loss, the consolidated statement of changes in 
equity and the consolidated cash flows Statement for the year then ended, and notes to the 
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies (hereinafter 
referred to as “the consolidated financial statements”). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the ~~ 
aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so 
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in. 
India, of their consolidated state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, of consolidated profit, 
consolidated changes in equity and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended, 

BASIS FOR OPINION 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 
143(10) of the Companies act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in 
the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our 
report, We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by ICAI, and we 
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our opinion. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment and based on the consideration 
of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements of components audited by them, were of 
most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These 
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, 
and in forming our.cpinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

TO The Members of 

ENTRY INDIA PROJECTS PRIVATE LIMITED 

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

OPINION 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Entry India Projects Private 

Limited (hereinafter referred to as the ‘the Company”) and its associate {the Company and its associate 

together referred to as “the Group”), which. comprise the consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 

2024, and the consolidated statement of Profit and Loss, the consolidated statement of changes in 

equity and the consolidated cash flows Statement for the year then ended, and notes to the 

consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies (hereinafter 

referred to as “the consolidated financial statements”). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 

aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so 

required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in 

india, of their consolidated state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, of consolidated profit, 

consolidated changes in equity and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended. 

BASIS FOR OPINION 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs}.specified under section 

143{10) of the Companies act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in 

the Auditos’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our 

report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by ICAI, and we 

have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 

2013. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 

basis for our pinion. 

Key Audit Matters 

* Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional Judgment and based on the consideration — 

of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements of components audited by them, were of 
most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These ~ 

matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, 

and in forming our opinion thereon,.and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR'S REPORT THEREON 

The Company's Board of Directors is Tesponsible for the. other information. The other information 

comprises the information included in the director's report and its annexure, but does not include the 

Consolidated Financia) Statements and our auditor's report thereon, Our opinian on the Consolidated 

Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance 

conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the 

_ ather information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent 

with the Consolidated Financial Statements or cur knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise - 

appears to be materially misstated. Hf, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is 

a material misstatement of this other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing 

to report in this regard. 

RESPONSIBILITIES OF MANAGEMENT AND THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE 

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the {Preparation and presentation of these 

consolidated financial statements in term of the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 that give a 

true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance and 

consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with the accounting principles generaily accepted in 

India, including the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. The respective Board 

of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate 

accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for saféguarding the assets of the Group 

and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregu larities; selection and application of appropriate _ 

accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, — 

implementation and maintenance ef adequate internal financial controis, that were operating 

effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 

preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from 

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of 

preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Company, as aforesaid, 

in preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Baard of Directors of the companies 

included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group te continue as a going 

concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 

accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no 

realistic alternative but to do so. 

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for overseeing 

the financial reporting process of the Group. 
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements 

as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's 

report that includes our opinion, Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a 

guarantee that an audit- conducted in accordance with SAS will always detect a material misstatement 

when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or errer and are considered material if, individually 

or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected ta influence. the economic decisions of users 

taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 

skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

* identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, — 

whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 

obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 

detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resuiting from error, as 

fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 

internal control. 

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 

that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are 

also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the | company has adequate internal financlal 

controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 

based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a materlal uncertainty exists related to events or 

conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern. if 

we conclude that 4 material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report. 

to the related disclosures In the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, 

to modify our epinion. Gur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 

duditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a 

going concern. 

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, 

including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying 

transactions and events ina manner that achieves fair presentation. 

* Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or 

business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We 

- are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements 
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of such entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent 

auditors. Fer the other entities included in the consolidated financial statements, which have been 

audited by other auditors, if any, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision 

and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. 

We communicate. with those charged with governance of the Company and such other entities included 

in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among 

other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any 

significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 

ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and 

other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and. where applicable, 

related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that 

were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and 

are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law. or. 

regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we 

determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences 

of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such 

communication. 

Other Matters 

The consolidated financial statements also include the Company's share of net foss of Rs. 4374.585/- 

(‘000 ) for the year ended 31st March, 2024, as considered in the consclidated financial statements, in 

respect of Cygnet Projects Private Limited, associate company, whose financial statements / financial 

information have been audited by us. 

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS 

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that: 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information. and explanations which to the best of our 

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated 

financial statements. 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by taw relating to preparation of the aforesaid 

consolidated financial statements have been kept so far.as it appears from our examination of those 

books and the reports of the other auditors, 

{c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, the consolidated 

statement of changes in equity and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are 
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in agreement with the relevant books of account maintalned for the purpose of preparation of the - 

consolidated financial statements, -" 

{d) in our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting 

Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Company as on 31st 

March, 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Company and the informatian provided by 

the associate companies incorporated in India, none ofthe directors of the. Group company 

incorporated in India is disqualified as on 34st March, 2024 fram being appointed as 4 director in terms 

of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 
| 

(f} With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Group and 

the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in Annexure-1. 

(g} In our opinion and based on the consideration of the information provided by the associate 

incorporated in India, the company being private limited company, the provisions of section 197 read . 

with Schedule V to the Act are not applicable. 

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 

of the Companies (Audit and Auditor's) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information 

and according to the explanations given to us: 

i. There were no pending litigations as at 31st March, 2024 which would impact the consolidated 

financial position of the Group companies; 

ii, The Group-companies did not have any material foreseeable losses on Jong-term contracts including 

derivative contracts during the year 31st March, 2024; 

iil. There aré no amounts which are required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection 

Fund by the Company and Its associates company incorporated in India:, 

iv.) {a} The respective Managements of the. Company and its associate which are companies . 

Incorporated in India, has represented to us that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no funds 

have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from share premium or any other sources or kind of 

funds) by the company to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities 

(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 

Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly Jend or invest In other persons or entities identified in 

any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any 

guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Benefi iciaries. , 

(b) The respective Managements of the Company and its associate which are companies incorporated in 

India, has represented. to us, that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no funds have been 
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received by the company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities ("Funding Parties”}, 

with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the-company shail, whether, 

directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by ~ 

or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”} or provide any guarantee, security or the ~ 

like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries and 

(c) Based on such audit procedures that the we have considered reasonable and appropriate in the 

circumstances on the Company and its associate which are companies incorporated in India, nothing has 

come to their notice that has caused them te believe that the representations made to us under sub- 

clause {a) and (b) aboye, contain any material, mis-statements. 

v.) The company and Its associate has not proposed, declared and paid any dividend during the year. 

Accordingly reporting under Rule 11(f) is not applicable to the company and its associate. 

vi} Based on our examination which included test checks and that performed by the respective auditors 

of the associates and joint ventures/joint operations which are companies incorporated in India whase - 

financial statements have been audited under the Act, the company, associates and joint ventures/joint 

operations have used an accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of 

recording audit trai) (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for ali relevant- 

transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit, we and respective 

auditors of the above referred associates and joint ventures/joint operations did not come across any 

instance of audit trail feature being tampered with. {Additionally, the audit trail has heen preserved by 

the company and above referred associates and joint ventures/joint ‘operations as per the statutory 

requirements for record retention. - oo 

UDIN: 24 5)OlFORKD PRI 2335 

For Rajiv Jaswant & Co 

Chartered Accountants 

El mces.) a\reenone) 3) 
Rajiv Rattan“ 
(Proprietor) “88° 
M. No. 510170 

Place: Ghaziabad 

Date:30.05.2024



ANNEXURE-1 

REPORT ON THE INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS UNDER CLAUSE (i) OF SUB-SECTION 3 OF SECTION . 

143 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 (“THE ACT”) - 7 

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of Entry India Projects Private 

Limited as of and for the year ended March 31, 2024, we have audited the internal financial controls 

over financial reporting of Entry thdia Projects Private Limited (hereinafter referred to as the “the 

Company”) and its associates which are companies incorporated in India, as of that date. 

MANAGEMENT". 5 RESPONSIBILITY FOR INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS 

The respective Board of Directors of the Company and its associates which are companies incorporated 

in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal 

contro] over financial reporting. criteria established by the Company considering the essential 

components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of internal Financiat Controis Over 

Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities 

include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were 

operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence 

to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of Its assets, the prevention and detection of 

frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation 

of reliable financial information, as required under the Act. : 

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company and its associates which are companies 

incorporated in India, internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these 

consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the 

Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) 

and the Standards on Auditing, both, issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, and deemed 

to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal 

financial controls, Those Standards and the. Guidance. Note require that we.comply with ethical 

requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate 

internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated financial 
statements was established and maintained and If such controls operated effectively In all material 

respects, Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 

internal financial controls system over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated financial 

statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial. controls over financial 

reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controis over financial reporting with 
reference to these consolidated financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, - 

and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on.the 

assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of 

the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. We 
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 

audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting with reference to these 

consolidated financial statements. 



MEANING OF. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING WITH REFERENCE TO 

THESE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

A company’s internal flnancial control over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated 

financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of 

financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for.external purposes in accordance with 

generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting 

with reference to these consolidated financial statements includes those policies and pracedures that - 

(1) pertain to the’ maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect. the 

transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that 

transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with 

generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being 

made anly in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) 

provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, 

or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING WITH 
REFERENCE.TO THESE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference 

to these consolidated financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper 

management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be 

detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting 

with reference to these consolidated financial statements to future perlods are subject to the risk that 

the internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated financial 

statements may become inadequate because of changes In conditions, or that the degrée of compliance - 

with the policies or procedures may deteriorate, © 

OPINION | 
In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
Company and its associates which are companies incorporated in India, have, maintained in all material 

respects, adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting with reference to these 

consolidated financial statements and such internal financial controls over financial. reporting with 

reference to these consolidated financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, 

based on the internal control over financial reporting teri etbled by the Company considering 

the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 

Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

For Rajiv Jaswant & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 

FRN NO. 0160380 
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Rajiv Rattan cen pcos | 
(Proprietag 
M. No, $10170 ¢-00° 
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Place: Ghaziabad 
Date: 30.05.2024



ENTRY INDIA PROJECTS PRIVATE LIMITED 

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2024 

Amount in T ‘O00 

As at As at 
Particulars Notes 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

L_ASSETS 

(1) Non-current assets 

Property, plant and equipment 3 424,035 420,557 
Investment in associates 4A 3,355,593 5,56,078 

Financial Assets 
(i) Investments 4B 4,29,301 4,36,770 

Total Non-Carrent Assets 14,08,930 14,13,404 

(2) Current Assets 
Financial Assets 

(i) Investments 5 3,31,394 90,000 
(it) Trade Receivables 6 686 1,879 
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 7 1,832 2,14,294 
{iv} Loans 8 21,115 1,54,823 
{¥) Other financial assets 9 1,422 71,436 

Other current assets 10 9,433 6,023 

Total Current Assets 3,465,782 5,386,455 
TOTAL ASSETS 17,74,712 19,51,859 

Ti, EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

1) Equity 
Equity share capital tl 15,531 15,531 
Other equity 12 14,34,520 14,18,450 

Total Equity 14,50,052 14,335,981 

{2) Liabilities 

Non Current Liabilities 
Financial Liabilities 

{i) Borrowings 13 2,38,485 435,286 

Deferred tax liabilities (net) 17 58,063 59.551 
Total Non-Current liabilities 296,548 494,837 

Current Liabilities 
Financial Liabilities 

(i) Borrowings 14 5,071 3,734 

tii) Other Financial Liabilities 15 19,534 17,599 

Other Current iiabilities 16 609 753 
Current tax liabilites 17 2,893 955 

Totat Current tiabilides 28,112 73,041 

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 17,74, 712 19,51,859 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies & 1&2 

Corporate information 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 

As per our Report of even date attached 

For Rajiv Jaswant & Co 
Chartered Accountants 

FRN Ne 016018¢ 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Entry India Projects Private Limited 
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Alok Dhir Madhav Dhir Kuldeep Bhardwaj 
Proprietor Director Director Company Secretary 
Membership No, : 510170 DIN: 00034335 DIN: 07227587 PAN: CGSPB9064P 

Place : Ghaziabad Place : New Delhi 
Dated : 30.05.2024 Dated : 30.05.2024



ENTRY INDIA PROJECTS PRIVATE LIMITED 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024 

Amount in ¢ 000 except per share data 

For the Year Ended For the Year Ended 
L Note: 

ro oes 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 
Revenue 

I. Revenue from Operations 18 35,029 36,077 

IL Other income 19 22,160 24,870 

Ili. Total Income 57,199 60,947 

TV. Expenses 

Employee benefits expense 20 3,705 2,297 

Financial expense 21 18,263 33,358 

Depreciation and amortisation expenses 3 3,212 2,708 

Other expenses 22 8,230 17,865 

Total Expenses (7V) 33,410 56,227 

¥. Profit/(loss) before exceptional Items and tax (II-FV) 23,779 4719 

Add: Share of profit (Loss) of associates {4,375) (2,488) 

VIL Exceptional Items - - 

VIL. Profit‘(loss) before Tax (V-VB) 19,404 2,231 

VIL Tax expense: 

+. Current Tax ivan 2,900 955 

2, Deferred Tax Charge/(Credit) 7 (25) (49) 

IX. Profit/(Loss) for the year from continuing operations 16,529 1326 

X, Other comprehensive income for the year 

Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or loss in 

subsequent periods: 

Net Gain/(Loss} on equity securities measured at Fair Value through Other 

Comprehensive Income (FYTOCD) 23 (5.814) (42,236) 

Deferred Tax charge/(credit) on gain(loss} on FVTOCI on equity securities 17 (1.463) (10,630) 

Share of comprehensive income of associate (net of tax} 3,891 (22,872) 

Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss) for the year (net of tax) (X) (489) (54,478) 

XI. Total comprehensive Income for the year (IX+X) 16,070 (53,152) 

XH. Earnings per equity share (for continuing operations} 
1. Basic 24 10.64 0.85 

2. Diluted 24 6.74 0.54 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies & Corporate information 1&2 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 

As per our Report of even date attached 

For Rajiv Jaswant & Co 

Chartered Accountants 
FRN No 6160136 

Proprietor 
Membership No. : 510170 

Place ; Ghaziabad 

Dated : 30.05.2024 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Entry India Projects Private Limited 

7 Ts Dhir 

Director 
DIN: 00034335 

Place : New Delhi 

Dated : 30.05.2024 

Madhav Dhir 

Director 
DIN: 07227587 

Kuldeep Bhardwaj 
Company Secretary 
PAN; CGSPB9064P



ENTRY INDIA PROJECTS PRIVATE LIMITED 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024 
Amount in % 'O0G 

A. Equity Share Capital 

(1) Current reporting period 
Balance at the Changes in Equity |Restated balance at the) Changes in equity | Balaace at the end of 

Particud begining of the =| Share Capital dine to heglaning of the share capital durlug| the current repordag 

a ars current reporting | prior period errors corrent reporting the current year perlod 

period 

Equity share capital 18,831 : 15,531 * 15,531 

Total 15,531 - 15.531 : 15,531 

(2) Previous reporting period 
Balance at the Changes in Equity |Restated balance at tke| Changes in equity | Balance at the end of 

beginning of tbe =| Share Capital due to beginning of the | share capital during] the previous reporting 

Particulars previous reporting | prior period errors previous reporting the previous year period 

period period 

Equity share capital 15,591 . 15,531 - 15,531 

Total 15,531 : 16.531 * 15,531 

B, Other Equity 

(1} Current reporting period 

Reserves and Surpl Ci Equi 

Particulars ties Prema = = Earai Coueeibie vee Total 

Securities Premium | Retained Earsings | pebontentures (CCD! secur 
a at the beginning of the current reporting 2,80,009 547,590 412,300 1,78,492 14,18,450 

Changes in accounting policy or prior period errors . . J . . 

Restated mene! at the beginning of the current 2,80,060 $,47,590 4,12,300 1,78,492 14,18,450 

Profit (Loss) for the year - 16,529 e : 16.529 

Other Comprehensive income for the year (net of tax) - 3,891 - (4351) (459) 

Total Comprebensive Income for the current year > 20,421 * 4,351} 16,078 

Balence at the end of the current reporting period 2,86,069 568,010 4,12,340 1,374,141 1434520 

(2) Previous reporting period 

Ri and Sui pulpory 

Particulars — _ ca Caer FYTO or oe Total 
Securities Premium | Retaii rings Deb Iccpy sea 

Batance at the beginning of the current reporting 2,80,069 5,609,136 4,12;300 2,10,098 14;71,602 

Changes in accounting policy or prior period errors . . . . . 

ave a ve at the beginning of the current 2,80,069 5,69,136 4,12,300 2,10,098 14,71,602 

Profit (Loss) for the year - 1,326 - : 1,326 

Other Comprehensive income for the year (net of tax} {22,872} - {31,606} (34,473) 

Total Comprehensive Income for the currem year 21546) - (31,646) (53,152) 

Balance ai the end of the current reporting period 280,065 $47,560 4,127,400 1, 78,492 14,18,450 

The accompanying ootes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 

Az per our Report of even date attached 

For Rajiv Jaswant & Co 

‘or 
Membership No. : 510170 

Place : Ghaziabad 
Dated : 90.05.2024 

OO ae 

For and oa behalf of the Board of Directors 
Eptry [ndla Frojects Private Limited 

Aiok Dhir 
Director 
DIN; 00034335 

Place : New Delhi 
Dated : 30.05.2024 

Madhav Dhir 
Director 
DIN: 07227587 
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Koldeep Bhardwaj 

PAN: CGSPB9064P 



ENTRY INDIA PROJECTS PRIVATE LIMITED 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024 

Amount in € ‘000 
Foe the Year Ended For the Year Ended 

siuriahimiiahl 31 March 1024 31 March 2023 

A. Cash flow from operating activities 

Profit/(loss) before tax 19,404 2,231 

Adjustments to reancile profit before tax to net cash flows: 

[Share in Associate profit 4375 2,488 
Depreciation 3,212 2,708 

Interest Income (7,249) (14,785) 

Profit on Sale of shares (13,550) - 

Operating Profit (loss) before working capital adjustments 6,192 C358) 

Working Capital Adjustments 

Changes in trade receivables 1,193 1,699) 
Changes in other current & Other liabilities 1,792 6,994 

‘Changes in other current assets 66,704 (67,342) 

75,880 (69,405) 

Less: Income tax paid (net of refunds) (357) (9.195) 

Cash flew from Oprating Activities (A} 74933 (78.600) 

B, Cash Flow from Investing activities 

Payment for FDR 
Receipts from FDR - 2,001,754 

Payment for Property, Plant & Equipment (6,690) (4,655) 

Payment for CWiP - 1905 

Purchase of Gold (394) - 
Purchase of Investments in Securities (3,87,400) (90,000) 
Proceeds from the sale of Investments 1,61,505 - 

Inter Corpornte Loans given 1,353,709 3,251 

Interest Received 7,249 14,785 

Net cash Mow from {used in) Investing activities (B) (1.921) 127,141 

C. Cash Flow frou Financing activities 

Proceeds(Repaid) of Loans from Bank (1,95,464) (9.309) 

Net cash flow (used in) fron financing activities (C} (5,95.464) (9.809) 

NET INCREASE IN CASH ANI CASH EQUIVALENTS (A+B+C) (2,132,462) 38,741 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 2,14,294 1,75,563 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR* 1,832 2,14,294 

COMPONENTS OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

Cash on hand 162 23 

Balances with scheduled banks: 
On current accounts 1,670 2,14,271 

__ 1,832 2,14,294 

Change iu Liability arising from Qoancing activities 

1 April 2023 Net Cash Flow HM March 2024 

Borrowing - Nou Current (refer note 13) 4,35,286 {1,96,201) 2,368,485 

Borrowing - Current (refer note 14} 3,734 1336 5,071 

439,021 (196,801) 243,556 

Notes: 

1. The cash flow has been prepared under tha "indirect metiiod” as set oul in Indian Accounting Standard (IND AS) 7 - Statement of Cash Flows 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 

As per our Report of even date attacked 
For Rajiv Jaswant & Co 
Chartered Accountants 
FRN No 0. 
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Rafiv Ratian oy yoo 
Propriett “Sue 
Membership No. : 310170 

Place : Ghaziabad 

Dated : 30.05.2024 

For and oa behalf of the Board of Directors 
Entry India Projects Private Limited 
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Director Director 

DIN: (XH194335 DAN: 07227587 

Place : New Delhi 
Dated : 30.05.2024 
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Kuldeep Bhardwal 
Company Secretary 
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ENTRY INDIA PROJECTS PRIVATE LIMITED 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION 

Reporting Entity 

Entry India Projects Private Limited (the “Company") and its associate (referred collectively as 

the “Group”), is primarily engaged in the business of carrying on the business of construction of 

residential houses, commercial buildings, flats and buildings etc. and other allied activities. The 

Company is domiciled and incorporated in India in 23.01.2008 and has its registered office at D- 

55, Defence Colony, New Delhi 110024, India, Non-convertible debentures of the Company are 

listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange of India Limited (BSE). 

The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 were approved by the Board of 

Direstors and authorised for issue on 30.05.2024. 

BASIS OF PREPARATION, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, CRITICAL 

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS AND STANDARDS ISSUED BUT 

NOT YET EFFECTIVE 

Statement of Compliance 

Tn accordance with the notification issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the Group has 

adopted Indian Accounting Standards (referred to as “Ind AS”) notified under the Companies 

(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 with effect from April 1, 2017. 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS as notified under the 

Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 read with Section 133 of the Companies 

Act, 2013. 

2.1 Basis of Preparation 

The financial statements have been prepared on the following basis: 

Basis of preparation 

These financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain 

financial instruments which are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period. 

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for 

goods and services. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to 

transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. 

Current Assets do not include elements which are not expected to be realised within 1 year and 

Current Liabilities do not include items which are due after 1 year, the period of 1 year being 

reckoned from the reporting date. 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS as notified under the 

Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 read with Section 133 of the Companies 

Act, 2013. 

The consolidated financial statements are presented in 2 which is the Group's functional currency. 

Principles of consolidation and equity accounting 

i. Subsidiaries 

Subsidiaries are entities (including structured entities) over which the Group has control. 

The Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable 

retums from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns 

through its power to direct the relevant activities of that entity. Subsidiaries are fully 

consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. 
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ENTRY INDIA PROJECTS PRIVATE LIMITED 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 

The Group combines the financial statements of the parent and its subsidiaries line by line 

adding together like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income and expenses. Intra-Group 

transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between entities within the 

Group are eliminated, Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides 

evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset. 

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared using uniform accounting 

policies for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances. 

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in 

the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, Consolidated Statement of Changes in 

Equity and the Consolidated Balance Sheet respectively. 

ii, Equity method accounting 

Under the equity method of accounting, the investments are initially recognised at cost and 

adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the post-acquisition profits or losses of 

the investee in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Group’s share of 

other comprehensive income of the investee in Other Comprehensive Income. 

iii. Investment in associates and joint ventures 

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant 

influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the 

investee, but is noi control or joint control over those policies. 

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of 

the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the 

contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when 

decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing 

control. 

The considerations made in determining whether significant influence or joint control are 

similar to those necessary to determine control over the subsidiaries. 

The Group’s investment in its associate and joint ventures are accounted for using the 

equity method from the date on which it becomes an associate or a joint venture. On 

acquisition of the investment, any difference between the cost of the investment and the 

Group’s share of the net fair value of the investee’s identifiable assets and liabilities is 

accounted for as follows: 

Goodwill relating to an associate or a joint venture is included in the carrying amount of the 

investment. Amortisation of that goodwill is not permitted. 

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the investee’s identifiable assets 

and liabilities over the cost of the investment is recognised directly in equity as capital 

reserve in the period in which the investment is acquired. 

The carrying amount of the investment is adjusted to recognise changes m the Group’s share 

of net assets of the associate or joint venture since the acquisition date. Goodwill relating to 

the associate or joint venture is included in the carrying amount of the investment and is not 

tested for impairment individually. 

The. statement of profit and loss includes the Group's share of the results of operations of the 

associate or joint venture. Any change in OCI of those investees is presented as part of the 

Group’s OCI. In addition, when there has been a change recognised directly in the equity of 

the iate or joint venture, the Group recognises its share of any changes, when applicable, 

ilie saterbat of changes in equity. Unrealised gains god Josses resulting from transactions 
) Ae ares 4g 



ENTRY INDIA PROJECTS PRIVATE LIMITED 

Notes to the Consolidated Financia] Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 

2.2 

between the Group and the associate or joint venture are elirninated to the extent of the 
interest in the associate or joint venture, / 
If an entity’s share of losses of an associate or a joint venture equals or exceeds its interest 
in the associate or joint venture (which includes any long term interest that, in substance, 
form part of the Group's net investment in the associate or joint venture}, the entity 
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to 
the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments 
on behalf of the associate or joint venture, If the associate or joint venture subsequently 
reports profits, the entity resumes recognising its share of those profits only after its share 
of the profits equals the share of losses not recognised. 

The aggregate of the Group's share of profit or loss of an associate and a joint venture is 
shown on the face of the statement of profit and loss. 

The financial statements of the associate or joint venture are prepared for the same reporting 
period as the Group. When necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies 
in line with those of the Group. 

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to 
recognise an impairment loss on its investment in its associate or joint venture. At each 
reporting date, the Group determines whether there is objective evidence that the investment 
in the associate or joint venture is impaired. If there is such evidence, the Group calculates the 
amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the associate or 
joint venture and its carrying value, and then recognises the loss as “Share of profit of an 
associate and a joint venture’ in the statement of profit or toss. 

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint control over the joint venture, the 
Group measures and recognises any retained imvestment at its fair value. Any difference 
between the carrying amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss of significant 
influence or joint control and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from 
disposal is recognised in profit or loss. 

Basis of classification of Current and Non-Current 

Assets and Liabilities in the balance sheet have been classified as either current or non- 

current based upon the requirements of Schedule II notified under the Companies Act, 
2013. An asset has been classified as current if 

«It ig expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle; 
It is held primarily for the purpose of trading; 
+ It is expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or 
+ It is cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to setile a 
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period. 

All other assets are classified as non-current. 

A liability has been classified as current when: 

+ It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycie; 
* It is held primarily for the purpose of trading; 
+ It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or 
* The Group does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at 
least twelve months after the reporting period. 

All other liabilities are classified as non-current. Current liabilities include current portion 
of non-current financial liabilities. 

a 



ENTRY INDIA PROJECTS PRIVATE LIMITED 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 

An Operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their 

realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Group has identified twelve months as its 

operating cycle. 

2.3 Significant Accounting Policies 

A Summary of the significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of the financial 

statements are as given below, These accounting policies have been applied consistently to 

all periods presented in the financial statements. 

i Revenue from Operations : 

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will 

flow to the Group and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the 

payment is being made. 

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking 

in to account contractually defined terms of payment excluding taxes or duties collected 

on behalf of the government. 

Effective April 1, 2018, the Group has applied Ind AS 115, Revenue from Contracts 

with Customers, which establishes comprehensive framework for determining whether, 

how much and when revenue is to be recognised. IND AS 115 replaces IND AS 18 

Revenue and IND AS 11 construction contracts. The Group has adopted IND AS 115 

using the cumulative catch-up transition method. The impact on the adoption of the 

standard on the financial statement of the Group is insignificant. 

Other Income 

Interest Income 

Interest income is accrued on a time proportion. 

Dividend Income 

Dividend income is recognised when the Group’s right to receive the amount is 

established. 

Property, Plant, Equipment and Intangible Assets 

Recognition and initial measurements 

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation {other 

than freehold land) and accumulated impairment losses, if any. 

Ail property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost. Cost includes the 

acquisition cost or the cost of construction, including duties and non-refundable taxes, 

expenses directly related to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary 

for making them operational for their intended use and, in the case of qualifying assets, 

the attributable borrowing costs. Initial estimate of costs of dismantling and removing 

the item and restoring the site on which it is located is also included if there is an 

obligation to restore it. 

Subsequent measurements 

Pc ae expenditure relating to property, plant and equipment is capitalised only 

“spswhérihis probable that future economic benefits associated with these will flow to the 

7 be measured reliably.
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Tif, 

iv, 

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if 
the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount. 

De-recegnition 

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no 
future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any 
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and 
equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying 
amount of the asset and is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Depreciation 

Depreciation is charged to Statement of Profit and Loss so as to expense the cost of 
assets (other than freehold land and properties under construction) less their residual 
values over their useful lives, using the written down method, as per the useful life 
prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. 

Leasehold improvements/buildings are amortised over the period of the lease or the 
useful life of the asset, whichever is lower. 

The assets’ useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the Balance Sheet date and 
the effect of any changes in estimates is accounted for on a prospective basis. Assets 
costing less than "5,000 are depreciated fully in the year of purchase. 

Capital work-in progress 

Capital work in progress represents projects under which the property, plant and equipment 
are not yet ready for their intended use and are carried at cost determined as aforesaid. 

Intangible Assets 

- Recognition and measurements 
Intangible assets include cost of acquired software. Intangible assets are imitially 
measured at acquisition cost including any directly attributable costs of preparing the 
asset for its intended use. 

Amortization 

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over their estimated useful economic 
life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible 
asset may be impaired. Intangible assets are amortised on a writlen down method over 
their estimated useful life. A rebuttable presumption that the useful life of an Intangible 
assets will not exceed 3 years from the date, when the asset is available for use is 
considered by the management. 

De-recognition 

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits 
are expected to arise from continued use of the asset. Gains or losses arising from de- 
recognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal 
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss when the asset is derecognised. 

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets 

Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or 

changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An 
irment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
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VE, 

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In 
assessing value in use, the estimated foture cash flows are discounted to their present 
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessment of the time 
value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash 
flows have not been adjusted. 

if the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less 
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is 
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment Joss is recognised immediately in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss. 

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a 
cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but 
so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would 
have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash- 
generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised 
immediately in Statement of Frofit and Loss. 

. Borrowing costs 

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of 
an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended 
use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost the asset. All other borrowing costs are 
expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and. 
other costs that an entity incurs in connection with borrowing of funds. Borrowing 
cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustments to 
the borrowing costs as per the standard. 

Assets taken on lease 

A Lease in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not 
transferred to the Group is classified as operating lease. Payments made under 
operating lease are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis 
over the period of the lease unless the payments are structured to increase in line with 
the expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost 
increases. 

For leases which include both land and building elements, basis of classification of each 
element is assessed on the date of transition, April 1, 2017, in accordance with Ind AS 

101 First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standard. 

Provisions 

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal or 
constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow 
of economic benefits will be required to setile the obligation. If the effect of the time 
value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected 
future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time 
value of money and the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the 
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost. 

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required 
to settle the present obligation at reporting date, taking into account the risks and 
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. 
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x. Financial Instruments 

Financial Assets 

Initial recognition and measurement 

Financial assets are recognised when, and only when, the Group becomes a party to the 

contractual provisions of the financial instrument. The Group determines the 

classification of its financial assets at initial recognition. 

When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in 

the case of financial assets not at fair value through profit or loss directly attributable 

transaction costs. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through 

profit or loss ave expensed in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Subsequent measurements 

Debt Instruments - The Group classifies its debt instruments as subsequently measured 

at amortised cost, fair value through Other Comprehensive Income or fair value 

through profit or loss based on its business model for managing the financial assets and 

the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset. 

i Financial Assets at amortised cosis: 

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial 

assets are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows 

represent solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI). Interest income 

from these financial assets is included as a part of the Group’s income in the 

Statement of Profit and Loss using the effective interest rate method. 

ii, Financial assets at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCT) 

Financial assets are subsequently measured at fair valne through Other 

Comprehensive Income if these financial assets are held for collection of 
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’ 
cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest. Movements in 

the carrying value are taken through Other Comprehensive Income, except for 

the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign 

exchange gains or losses which are recognised in the Statement of Profit and 

Loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss 

previously recognised in Other Comprehensive Income is reclassified from 

Other Comprehensive Income to the Statement of Profit and Loss. Interest 

income on such financial assets is included as a part of the Group’s income in 

the Statement of Profit and Loss using the effective interest rate method. 

iii. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) 

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured 

at fair value through profit or loss. A gain or loss on such debt instrument that 
is subsequently measured at FVTPL and is not part of a hedging relationship as 
well as interest income is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Equity Instruments 

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments (other than the investment in 

subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures which are measured at cost) at fair value. 

Where the Group has elected io present fair value gains and losses on equity 

investments in Other Comprehensive Income (“FVOCT"), there is no subsequent 
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss. Dividends from such 
investments are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as other income -when~ 

the group’s right to receive payment is established. via ee PA. 
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When the equity investment is de-recognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously 

recognised in Other Comprehensive Income is reclassified from Other Comprehensive 

Income to the Retained Earnings direcily. 

De-recognition 

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of 

similar financial assets} is de-recognised (i. removed from the Group’s balance 

sheet) when: 

« The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or 

* The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has 

assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to 

a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Group has 

transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has 

neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but 

has transferred control of the asset. 

Impairment of financial assets 

The Group assesses on a forward locking basis the expected credit losses {ECL) 

associated with its assets carried at amortised cost and FVTOCI debt instruments. The 

impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant 

increase in credit risk since initial recognition. 

For trade receivables only, the Group applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind 

AS 109 ‘Financial Instruments’, which requires expected lifetime losses to be 

recognised from initial recognition of the receivables. 

The application of simplified approach does not require the Group to track changes in 

credit risk, Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at 

each reporting date, right from its initial recognition. 

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the 

Group categorizes them into Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3, as described below: 

Stage 1: When financial assets are first recognized, the Group recognizes an allowance based 

on 12 months ECLs. Stage 1 financial assets also include facilities where the credit risk 

has improved and the financial assets has been reclassified from Stage 2. 

Stage 2: When a financial assets has shown a significant increase in credit risk since origination, 

the Group records an allowance for the LTECLs. Stage 2 loans also include facilities, 

where the credit risk has improved and the financial assets has been reclassified from 

Stage 3. 

Stage 3: Financial assets considered credit-impaired. The Group records an allowance for the 

LTECLs. 
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 

Financial Liabilities 

Initial Recognition 

Financial liabilities are recognised when, and only when, the Group becomes a party 
to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument. The Group determines the 
classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition. All financial liabilities are 
recognised initially at fair value, plus, in the case of financial liabilities not at fair 
value through profit or loss directly attributable transaction costs. 

Subsequent Measurement 

After initial recognition, financial liabilities that are not carried at fair value through 

profit or loss are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest 
method. Gains and losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the 
liabilities are de-recognised, and through the amortisation process. 

De-recognition 

A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is 
discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by 
another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the tenms of an 
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is 
treated as a de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new 
liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Offsetting of financial instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the 
balance sheets if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised 
amounts and there is an intention to setile on a net basis, to realize the assets and settle 
the liabilities simultaneously. 

Cash and Cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand 
and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are 
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 

Forelgn Currency Translation: 

The functional currency of the Group is Indian rupee. 

Ls Initial Recognition 

On initial recognition, all foreign currency transactions are recorded by 
applying to the foreign currency amount the exchange rate between the 
reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction. 

Hf. Subsequent recegnition 

As at the reporting date, non-monetary items which are carried at historical 
cost and denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange 
rate at the date of the transaction. All non-monetary items which are carried at 
fair value denominated in a foreign currency are retranslated at the rates” 
prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. fag one N 

nl fa ne “a 
if ow f if 

Bo f= \Feiforeors of } ae \ Ghaziabad wes 
— aia i oe 4% 

ca



ENTRY INDIA PROJECTS PRIVATE LIMITED 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 

Income and expenses in foreign currencies are recorded at exchange rates 
prevailing on the date of the transaction. Foreign currency denominated 
monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the exchange rate prevailing on 
the balance sheet date and exchange gains and losses arising on settlement and 
restatement are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Effective April 1, 2018, the Group has adopted Appendix B to Ind AS 2i, 

Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration which clarifies 

the date of transaction for the purpose of determining the exchange rate to use 

on initia] recognition of the related asset, expense or income when an entity 

has received or paid advance consideration in a foreign currency. The effect on 

account of adoption of this amendment was insignificant. 

ATH. Employee benefits 

i Short Term Obligations: The costs of all short-term employee benefits (that are 
expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in 
which the employees render the related service} are recognised during the 
period in which the employee renders the related services. The accruals for 
employee entitlements of benefits such as salaries, bonuses and annual leave 

Tepresent the amount which the Group has a present obligation to pay as a 
result of the employees' services and the obligation can be measured reliably. 
The accruals have been calculated at undiscounted amounts based on current 
salary levels at the Balance Sheet date. 

if, Compensated Absences: Compensated absences which are not expected to 
occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employee 
renders the related services are recognised as an actuarially determined 
liability at the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the Balance 
Sheet date. 

AV, Taxes 

Current Income Tax and Deferred Tax 

Tax expense comprises current tax and the net change in the deferred tax asset or 
liability during the year. Current and deferred tax are recognised in statement of profit 
and loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive 
income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also 
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively. 

Current Tax 

Current tax expenses are accounted in the same period to which the revenue and 
expenses relate. Provision for current income tax is made for the tax liability payable on 
taxable income after considering tax allowances, deductions and exemptions 
detennined in accordance with the applicable tax rates and the prevailing tax laws. 
Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally 
enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle the 
asset and the lability on a net basis. 

Deferred Tax 
Deferred income tax is recognised using the balance sheet approach. Deferred income 
tax assets and liabilities are recognised for deductible and taxable temporary differences 
arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount in 
financial statements, except when the deferred income tax arises from the i 
recognition of goodwill, an asset or liability in a transaction that is not ats Aes, 
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combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable profits or loss at the time of the 
transaction. 

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable 
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and the carry 
forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised. 

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences 
except in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in 
subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures where the timing of the reversal of 
the temporary difference can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary 
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and 
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be 
available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilised. 

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at tax rates that are expected to apply in 
the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax 
laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set 
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes 
levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets 
and liabilities on a net basis. 

Minimum Alternative Tax (“MAT”) credit forming part of Deferred tax assets is 

recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is reasonable certainty that the 
Group will pay normal income tax during the specified period. Such asset is reviewed at 
each Balance Sheet date and the carrying amount of the MAT credit asset is written 
down to the extent there is no longer a reasonable certainty to the effect that the Group 
will pay normal income tax during the specified period. 

AV. Earnings Per Share 

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year 
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of 
the equity shares outstanding during the year, 

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, net profit or loss for the year 
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company and the weighted average number of 
shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effect of ail dilutive potential 
equity shares. 

24 Critical accounting estimates and judgements 

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with the recognition and 
measurement principles of Ind AS requires management to make judgements, estimates and 
assumptions, that affect the reported balances of assets and liabilities, disclosures relating to 
contingent liabilities as at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of 
income and expenses for the years presented. Actual resulis may differ from these 
estimates. 

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to 
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in 
any future periods affected. 
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 

In particular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical 
judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the 
amounts recognised in the financial statements pertain to: 

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets: The Group reviews 
the useful life of property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets as at the end of each 
reporting period. This reassessment may result in change in depreciation expense in future 
periods. 

Impairment testing: Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets that are subject to 
amortisation/ depreciation are tested for impairment when events occur or changes in 
circumstances indicate that the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is less than 
its carrying value. The recoverable amount of cash generating units is higher of value-in- 
use and fair value less cost to sell. The calculation involves use of significant estimates and 
assumptions which includes turnover and earnings multiples, growth rates and net margins 
used to calculate projected future cash flows, risk-adjusted discount rate, future economic 
and market conditions. 

Impairment of investments; The Group reviews its carrying value of investments carried 
at cost or amortised cost annually, or more frequently when there is indication for 
impairment. If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss 
is accounted for. 

Income Taxes: Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is regarded as 
probable that deductible temporary differences can be realised. The Group estimates 
deferred tax assets and liabilities based on current tax laws and rates and in certain cases, 

business plans, including management’s expectations regarding the manner and timing of 
recovery of the related assets. Changes in these estimates may affect the amount of deferred 
tax liabilities or the valuation of deferred tax assets and thereby the tax charges in the 
Statement of Profit or Loss. 

Provision for tax Habilities require judgements on the interpretation of tax legislation, 

developments in case law and the potential outcomes of tax audits and appeals which may 
be subject to significant uncertainty. Therefore the actual results may vary from 
expectations resulting in adjustments to provisions, the valuation of deferred tax assets, 
cash tax settlements and therefore the tax charge in the Statement of Profit or Loss. 

Litigation: From time to time, the Group is subject to legal proceedings the ultimate 
outcome of cach being always subject to many uncertainties inherent in litigation. A 
provision for litigation is made when it is considered probable that a payment will be made 
and the amount of the Joss can be reasonably estimated. Significant judgement is made 
when evaluating, among other factors, the probability of unfavourable outcome and the 
ability to make a reasonable estimate of the amount of potential loss. Litigation provisions 
are reviewed at each accounting period and revisions made for the changes in facts and 
circumstances. 

Defined benefit plans: The cost of the defined benefit plans and the present value of the 
defined benefit obligation are based on actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit 
method. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from 
actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, 
future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the 
valuation and its long term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to 
changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date. 

Recent Accounting Standards (IND AS) 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”), through Companies {Indian 
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Amendment Rules, has notified the following new and amendments to Ind AS which are 

effective from April 1, 2019: 

Ind AS 116, Leases: 

Ind AS 116 will replace the existing leases standard, Ind AS 17, Leases, and related 
interpretations. The standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, 
presentation and disclosure of ieases for both parties to a contract i.e., the lessee and the lessor. 
Ind AS 116 introduces a single lessee accounting model and requires the lessee to recognize 
assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more than twelve months, unless the underlying 
asset is of low value. Currently, operating lease expenses are charged to the Statement of Profit 
and Loss. The standard also contains enhanced disclosure requirements for lessees. Ind AS 116 
substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in Ind AS 17. 

The effective date for the adoption of Ind AS 116 is annual periods beginning on or after April 

1, 2019. The standard permits two possible methods of transition: 

+ Full retrospective — Retrospectively to each prior period presented applying Ind AS 8, 
Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errers 

+ Modified retrospective — Retrospectively, with the cunvulative effect of initially applying the 
standard recognized at the date of initial application Under modified retrospective approach, the 
lessee records the lease liability as the present value of the remaining iease payments, 

discounted at the incremental borrowing rate and the right of use asset either as : 

* Its carrying amount as if the standard had been applied since the commencement date, but 

discounted at the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application, or An 
amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or acerned lease 

payments related to that lease recognized under Ind AS 17 immediately before the date of 
initial application. 

The effect on adoption of Ind AS 16 would be insignificant in the standalone financial 

statements. 

Ind AS 12, Appendix C, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments 

On March 30, 2020, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Ind AS 12, Appendix C, 
Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments which is to be applied while performing the 
determination of taxable profit (or loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits 
and tax rates, when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments under Ind AS 12. 
According to the appendix, companies need to determine the probability of the relevant tax 
authority accepting each tax treatment, or group of tax treatments, that the companies have 
used or plan to use in their income tax filing which has te be considered to compute the 
most likely amount or the expected value of the tax treatment when determining taxable 
profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates, The standard 
pennits two possible methods of transition 

Full retrospective approach — Under this approach, Appendix C will be applied retrospectively 
to each prior reporting period presented in accordance with Ind AS 8, Accounting Policies, 
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, without using hindsight, and 

Retrospectively with cumulative effect of initially applying Appendix C recognized by 

adjusting equity on initial application, without adjusting comparatives The effective date for 

adoption of Ind AS 12 Appendix C is amual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2019. The 
Group will adopt the standard on April 1, 2019 and has decided to adjust the cumulative effect 

in equity on the date of initial application Le. April 1, 2019 without adjusting comparatives. 
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The effect on adoption of Ind AS 12 Appendix C would be insignificant in the standalone 

financial statements. 

Amendment to Ind AS 12, Income taxes: 

On March 30, 2019, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued amendments to the guidance 
in Ind AS 12, Income Taxes, in connection with accounting for dividend distribution taxes. 

The amendment clarifies that an entity shall recognize the income tax consequences of 

dividends in profit or loss, other comprehensive income or equity according to where the 
entity originally recognized those past transactions or events. 

Effective date for application of this amendment is annual pericd beginning on or after 
April 1, 2019. 

The effect on adoption of Ind AS 12 Appendix C would be insignificant in the standalone 
financial statements.Ind AS 109- Prepayments Features with Negative Compensation 

The amendments relate to the existing requirements in Ind AS 109 regarding termination 
rights in order to allow measurement at amortised cost (or, depending on the business 
model, at fair value through other comprehensive income) even in the case of negative 

compensation payments. The Group does not expect this amendment to have any impact 
on its financial statements. 

Amendment to Ind AS 19, Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement: 

On March 30, 2019, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued amendments to Ind AS 19, 

Employee Benefits, in connection with accounting for plan amendments, curtailments and 
settlements. 

The amendments require an entity: 

To use updated assumptions to determine current service cost and net interest for the 

remainder of the period after a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement; and 

To recognize in profit or loss as part of past service cost, or a gain or loss on settlement, 
any reduction in a surplus, even if that surplus was not previously recognized because of 
the impact of the asset ceiling. 

Effective date for application of this amendment is annual period beginning on or after 
April 1, 2020. The Group does not have any impact on account of this amendment. 

IND AS 23- Borrowing Costs 

The amendments clarify that if any specific borrowing remains outstanding after the 

related asset is ready for its intended use or sale, that borrowing becomes part of the finds 
that an entity borrows generally when calculating the capitalisation rate on general 
borrowings. The Group does not expect any impact from this amendment. 

IND AS 28- Long term interests in Associates and Joint Ventures 

The amendments clarify that an entity applies Ind AS 109 Financial Instramest, Yo 
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associate or joint venture but to which the equity method is not applied. The Group does 
not currently have any long term interests in associates and joint ventures. 

IND AS 103- Business Combinations and Ind AS 111-Joint Arrangements 

The amendments to Ind AS 103 relating to re-measurement clarify that when as entity 

obtains control of a business that is a joint operation, it re-measures previously held 
interests in that business. The amendments to Ind AS 111 clarify that when an entity 

obtains joint control of a business that is a joint operation, the entity does not re-measure 
previously held interests in that business. The Group will apply the pronouncement if and 

when it obtains control/joint control of a business that is a joint operation. 
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ENTRY INDIA PROJECTS PRIVATE LIMITED 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 

Note 4A 

INVESTMENTS- NON CURRENT 

Tnvestinents !u unquoted equity instruments carried at cost 

Investments in associates 

42,28,250 (31 March 2023 - 42,28,250 of = 10 each fully paid up of Cygnet Projects Pvt. Ltd. 
Add- Share of Profits 

Add- Share of OCI 

Total 

Note 4B 

Amount In T ‘000 

Investments in equity instruments carried at fair value through other comprehensive Income (OCI) 

Unquoted equity instruments 

7,78,000 (3 L March 2023 - 7,78,000) of = 10 each fully paid up of Ammadoes Trading and Consultants 

Pvt. Lid. 

2,70,000 (31 March 2023 -2,70,000) of 10 each fully paid up Class-B of Ammadoes Trading and 
Consultants Pvt. Lid. 

Nil (31 March 2023- 12,61,000) & 10 each, fully paid up equity shares of Sri Parthasarthy Infrastructure 
Pvt. Lid. 

10,20,000 (31 March 2023- 950,000} % 10 each, fully paid up equity shares of Alchemist Assets 
Reconstruction Company Limited 

20,56,005 (31 March 2023 - 20,56,005) of t 10 cach fully paid up of Shiva Consultants Pvt. Ltd. 

23,96,263 (31 March 2023- 23,96,263)} = 10 each, fully paid up equity shares of Deccan Chronicals 
Holdings Lid. 

66,740 (31 March 2023- 3,90,000) = 10 each, fully paid up equity shares of Cirrus Chemicals Pvt. Ltd. 

Total 

Aggregate amount of Unquoted Investments 

Total 

Note 5 

INVESTMENT-CURRENT 

At Amortised Cost 

362 (Previous year 100} CCDs of Rs,1,00,000/- each, fully paid, of Sri Parathasarthy Infrastructure Pvt. 
Led. 

200 (Previous year Nil) CCDs of Rs. 1,00,000/- each, fully paid, of Power Metal and Alloys Pvt. Ltd, 

215 (Previous year Nil) OCDs of Rs.1,00,000/- each, fully paid, of Ammadoes Consultants & Trading Pvt. 

Lid 
2525 (Previous year Nil) CCDs of Rs.1,00,000/- each, fully paid, of Asoksundri & Infrastructure Pyt. Led. 

Investment in Debt Assign Indraprastha Gas Ltd. 
Investment in Gold 

Total 

Note 6 (a) 

TRADE RECEIVABLES 

Trade Receivables considered good - Unsecured: 

Total 

AS at Asat 

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

5,536,078 5,81,438 
(4,375) (A883) 
3,891 (22,872) 

555,595 $56,078 _ 

36,480 35,337 

12,660 12,264 

- 14,972 

62,220 59,850 

3,16.563 3,06,476 

i] 0 

1,377 7,870 

429.301 436,770 

4,29,301 4,36,770 
429,301 4.536.770 

Asat As at 

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

36,500 10,000 

20,000 - 

21,600 - 

2,352,500 - 

- 80,000 
394 - 

3,31,394 90.000 

As at As at 

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

686 1,879 

686 1879 



ENTRY INDIA PROJECTS PRIVATE LIMITED 

The accompanying notes are sn integral part of these consolidated finsncial statements, 

Note (01 
Trade receivables ageing as at March 31, 2024 Amount int '000 

Not Due far Outstai for following periods from due date of payment 

5.No. |Particwars Unbilled | “payment | LessehanéMonths | émdouths-t year | t-zyears | 2-3 years ne 3 Total 
Undisputed Trade recetvables . . 

t -considered good 586 686 

2 Undisputed Trade receivables - which . . . 
have slgnificantincrease in credit risk 

3 Undisputed Trade receivables = credit . ~ . . . . 
impaired 

4 Disputed Trade recelvables . . . . 

-considered good 

5 Bisputed Trade receivables » which . . . . 

have sigalficant increase in credit risk 

6 Disputed Trade receivables - credit . . . . . . . . 

impaired 
> 686 : : 426 

Trade receivables ageing as at March 31,2023 
Not Due for Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

S.No, |Particulars Tnbilted | “payment | LessthanéMonths | 6Months-1year | 1-2yeare | 2-3years| Morethan$ | Total 
Ondisputed Trade receivables 

1 -considered good 1879 . 1479 

3 Undisputed Trade receivables ~ which . . . 
have significant Increase in credit risk 

4 Undisputed Trade recetvables - credit . . 

impaired 
4 Disputed Trade receivables . - . . “3 . . . 

-consitered good 

g [Disputed Trade receivables - which . . . . . . . 
have significant increase in credit risk 

6 Disputed Trade receivables - credit . = . . 2 . . . 

impaired 
Grass + + 1,879. : = Le79 



ENTRY INDIA PROJECTS PRIVATE LIMITED 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 

Nate 7 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

Balance with banks - 

In current account 

Cash on hand 

Total 

Note 8 

LOANS - CURRENT 

Unsecured, considered good 

Other Loans and Advances 

Inter Corporate Loans - Related Party [Refer Note.26] 

Inter Corporate Loans - Other 

Total 

Note 9 

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS - CURRENT 

(Unsecured, considered good) 

Security Deposits 
Interest Receivable from BSES 

Total 

Note 10 

OTHER - CURRENT ASSETS 

(Unsecured, considered good) 
Balance with Revenue Authorities 

Advances for Expenses 

Total 

As at Asat 

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

1,670 2,14,271 

162 23 

1,832 214294 

As at As at 

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

10,000 94,823 

11,115 60,000 

21,115 154,823 _ 

As at As at 

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

1,344 71,362 
78 74 

1,422 71,436 

As at Ag at 
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

9,287 5,910 
45 113 

9.333 6023 

awed.



ENTRY INDIA PROJECTS PRIVATE LIMITED 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 

Amount in 2‘) 
Particulars As at As at 

3t March 2024 31 March 2023 

Note 11 
EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL 

Authorised 
11,60,000 (31 March 2623 - 11,00,000} equity shares of = 10 each 11,000 11,000 

fully paid up 

10,600,000 {31 March 2023 - 10,00,000} Class B equity shares of % 10 16,000 10,000 

each fully paid up 

21,000 21,000 

Issued, subscribed and fully pald-up 

10,35,000 (31 March 2023 - 10,35,000) equity shares of % 10 each 10,350 10,350 

fully paid up 

§,18,134 (31 March 2023 - 5,18,134) Class B equity shares of = 10 4,181 5,181 

each fully paid up 

18,531 15,531 

4 Reconcilation of shares outstanding at the beginniag and end of reporting period 

Equity Shares Asat As at 

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

No of Shares Amount No of Shares) Amount 

At the beginning of the period 15,53,134 15,531 15,53,134 15,531.34 
Issued during the year - . - . 

Outstanding at the end of the period 15,53,134 15,531 15,53,134 15,531 

{b) The Company has ordinary equity shares & class B equity shares, both having par value of Rs.10 each. Each holder of both classes of equity shares is 

entitled to same rights in all respects except that the Class B Equity shares shall carry differential voting rights. 

(c) Details of Shares held by Shareholders holding more than 5% of aggregate Shares in the Company 

Class of shares/Name of Shareholder As at 3ist March 2024 As at 31s¢ March 2023 

Equity shares with voting rights Number of shares % of Holding | Number of shares | % of Holding 

Ordinary Equity Shares: 

Alok Dhir 799,675 51.49% 799,675 51.49% 
Maneesha Dhir 2,08.450 13.42% 2,08,450 13.42% 

Class BE Equity Shares: 

M/s Shiva Consultants Pvt. Ltd. 3.67874 23.69% 3,67, 874 23.69% 

M/s Cygnet Projects Private Limited 98,446 6.34% 98,446 6.34% 

d) Shareholding of Promoters 

Shares held by promoters at the end of the year % Change 

Promoter name Year ended No. of Shares % of Total during the 
Shares year 

7,99,675 51.49 
Alok Dhir As at March 31, 2024 “ 

As at March 31, 2023 799,675 51.49 - 

We ; 
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ENTRY INDIA FROJECTS PRIVATE LIMITED 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated fimancial statements. 

Amount in 7 ‘00 

Note 12 

OTHER EQUITY 

Particulars Ag at Asat 
31 March 2024 31 Mareh 2023 

Retained Earnings 

Balance at the beginning of the year 5,47,590 $,69,136 

Profit / (Loss) for the year 16,529 1,326 

Other Compreheasive imcome for the year 3,391 (22,872) 

Balance at the end of the Year 5,638,010 5,47, 590 

Securities Premium 

Balance at the begimming of the year 2,80,069 2,80,069 

Add: On issue of Equity Shares - . 

Balance at the end of the Year 2,30,069 2,80,06% 

Compulsory Convertible Debentures [CCDs|* 
Balance at the beginning of the year 412,300 4,132,300 

Add: Issued during the year - 

Balance at the end of the Year 412,300 412,306 

*Non listed, unsecured, 0% coupon rate, convertible within 10 years from the date af issue, Faee value of Rs, 1 Lakhs each, fully paid up. 

FVTOCI Reserve 
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,78,492 2,106,098 

Add/ Less: Movement dung the year (Net of Tax) (4,351) (31,606) 

Balance at the end of the Year 174,141 1,78,492 

Total 14,354,520 14,138,450 

Note 13 

BORROWINGS 

Particulars As at As at 
34 Mareh 2024 31 March 2023 

BORROWINGS - NON CURRENT 

(a) Debenture 

Unsecured 

0% 1,000 (31 March 2023-1,000) Listed Non Convertible Debentures-Listed (NCD) of Rs.100,000 each fully 1,00,000 1,00,000 

paid up# 

(b} Term Loans 

Secured 
From Bank * 126,179.64 3,35,286.23 

From NBFC ** 4,805,75 - 

(c) Unsecured Loans from Related parties 7,500 - 

Total 238,485 435,286 

# Unsecured, Zero Coupon, Listed on BSE, Non Convertible Redeemable Debentures of Rs.1,00,000 each, fully paid, which are redeemable in 10 years, 

© Secured against Property of the Company, @ 9% (in P/Y 2022-23 @10.40%%} floating interest rate for a remaning tenure of 185 EMI's of Rs.13.05 lakhs 

each. 

+* Secured against vehicles of the Company, @8.64% (in P/Y 2022-23 Nil) floating interest rate for a remaning tenure of 60 EMI's of Rs.1.19 lakh each. 
*** Unsecured loan from related party of the Company, @ 9% (im P/Y 2022-23 Nil) interest rate, repayable within | to 5 Year. 

Note 14 

BORROWINGS 

Particulars Ag at Asat 

31 March 2424 31 March 2023 

BORROWINGS - CURRENT 

(a) Term Loans 

Secured 

From Bank * 4,107 3,734 

From NBFC ** 964 - 

Total 5,071 37344 

* Secured against Property of the Company, @ 9% (in P/Y 2022-23 @10.40%) floating interest rate for a remaning tenure of 185 EMT's a 13.05 lakhs 

ae Secured against vehicles of the Company, @8.64% (in P/Y 2022-23 Nil) floating interest rate for a remaning tenure of 60 EMI's of Rs a4 Anis le " 
i >/ 
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ENTRY INDIA PROJECTS PRIVATE LIMITED 
The accompanying notes are an integral part af these consolidated financial statements. 

Note 15 Amount in ¥ ‘000 
» OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 

Particulars AS at As at 

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 
Expenses Payable 707 415 
Security Deposit 15,099 15,099 
Interest Accrued on Bank Loan 728 2,085 
Payable to Related Party for purpose of Investment in CCD 3,000 - 

Total 19,534 17,599 

Note 16 
OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES 

Particulars Asat As at 

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

Statutory Dues Payables 600 753 

Total 605 753 

Note 17 

CURRENT TAX LIABILITY: 
Particulars As at As at 

JE March 2024 31 March 2023 

Opening Balance 955 10,644 

Less : Tax Adjusted (955) (9,195) 
- (1,449) 

Add: Current Year Tax 2,898 955 

Total __-: 2.898 955 

Tax diseloure 

The major components of income tax expense for the years ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023 are: 

Particulars Agat Ag at 

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

(a) Profit/{loss) before tax 23,779 4,719 

Current tax: 

Current tax on profits for the year 2,900 955 

Current tax expense 2,500 955 

Deferred tax charge(credit): 

Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences 

-On account of Depreciation (25) (49) 

Total Income tax expense/(income) reported in the statement of profit or loss 2,875 905 

Other comprehensive imcome/ (loss) section 
Deferred tax charge/(credit): (1,463) (10,630) 

Income tax charged(credited) to other comprehensive income/ (loss) (1,463) (10,630) 



ENTRY INDIA PROJECTS PRIVATE LIMITED 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 

(b) Recenciiation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023 

Particulars Asat Asat 

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

Profit/(Loss) before tax 23,779 4,719 

Al statutory income tax rite 25.17% 25.17% 
income tax expense calculated at statutory income tax rate 5,985 1,188 

Tax effect of amounts -Credit which are not deductible/(taxable) in calculating taxable income; 

Effect of Expenses not allowed for tax purposes 
Other differences due to Depreciation 26 49 
Other differences due to disallowance 15 (283) 

Other differences due to capital gam G,.2y - 
Deferred Tax charge/(credit} due to FVTOCI (1,463) (10,630) 

Deferred Tax charge/(credit) other than due to FVTOCI (25) (49) 
Short tax of the previous year 2 : 
Fotal adjustments (4,573) (16,912) 

Income tax expense including impact of Other Comprehensive Income 1,412 (9,725) 

(¢)} Deferred tax Hiability/(Asset) 

Particulars Asat Asat 

31 March 2024 31 March 2623 

The balance comprises temporary differences attributabte to: 

-On Property, plant and equipment impact On difference between tax depreciation & books depreciation (506) (481) 
-On gain/(loss) on FYTOCI on equity securities 58,568 60,032 
Deferred Tax Liability/(Assets) 58,03 59,551 



ENTRY INDIA PROJECTS PRIVATE LIMITED 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 

Amount in 2 "OH 

Note 18 

A. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS 

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended 
31 March 2024 34 March 2023 

Rental Income 35,029 25,629 

Revenue from the sale of services - 10,448 

Total 35,029 36,077 

Note 19 

OTHER INCOME 

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended 
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

Profit on sale of Investment 13,540 . 

Interest Income- Inter Corporate Loans 7,249 14,785 
Interest Income- FDR 1,262 8,548 
Interest Income- Others 99 88 
Reversal of provision of Income tax - 1,449 

Total 22,166 24,870 

Total interest meome (Calculated using the effective interest method) for financial assets that are 

not at falr value through profit or loss 

In relation to financial assets classified at amortised cost 7,249 14,785 
Total 7249 14,785 

Note 20 
EMPLOYEES BENEFIT EXPENSES 

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended 
31 Mareh 2024 31 March 2023 

Salary 3,671 2,284 
Staff Welfare 35 13 

Total 3,705 2,297 

Note 21 

FINANCIAL EXPENSES 

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended 

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

Interest on Loan from Bank 18,227 30,939 
Interest on loan from related party 20 2,419 
Processing fee on Loan from Bank 16 - 

Total 18,263 33,358 

Note 22 

OTHER EXPENSES 

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended 
31 Mareh 2024 31 Mareh 2023 

Advertisement Expenses 70 

Legal and professional* 5,351 1,340 
Commission & Brokerage - 1,850 
Municipal Tax 1,122 12,837 

Rates and taxes 4 22 

Repair & Maintenance Expenses 222 268 
Eketricity Expenses 1 264 
Tnterest On Government Dues 28 ae 
Lease Deed Exp. - 311 
Security Guards Expenses 856 . 
Miscellaneous Expenses fia 398 60) 

4 OV oy 

‘Total fo LON 3.230 17,865 
ye 

i S1 Nel 
*Payments to auditors pod 

-for Statutory Audit fees | * (t OPPS! x | 65 65 
-for Tax Andit fees a 7 30 
-for Company law matters SS, Sieg Re - . 

-for Other matters . 120 88 

Total 215 153 

Note 23 

sos For the year ended For the year ended 
Statement of other comprehensive mcome —_—— 3) March 2024 31 Mareh 2023 

{i} Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss wn —_— 

FYOTCI - on equity securities a ae ye (5,814) (42,236) 
Fotal a a) (5,314) (42,236) 
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ENTRY INDIA PROJECTS PRIVATE LIMITED 
The accompanying Hotes are at intepral part of these consolidated financial statements. 

Note 30 
Interest ln Other Company- Associate 

1, Cypmet Projects Private Limited 

The Group has 47.76% (3) March 2023- 47.7696) interest in Cvimet Protects Private Limited having, incorporated in Inida 
The following table ibustrates the summarised financial information of the Group's investment in Cygnet Projects Private Limited 

Amount ia €'008 

31-Mar-24] 31-Mar-23] 

1468 4,995) 
10,622 19,045) 
A153) G5) 

6 160 
Profit loss } for the year S160) 6210) 
‘Ciher comprehensive income 3,148 (47,8895) 

(Total comprehensive iacome for the year {1,012} (53,099) 

townership 47.76% £7.76% 
Effective ownership 47.76% AP76% 
Propertionate of Group's ownership (483) (25,560) 
‘Considered for consolidation duc to blesses in Associate (483) (2500 

Note 31 
Statutory Group Information 

Amopor in © 1000 

Net Assets Share in Frofit/(Less) Share ia Other Comprehensive Share im total Comprehensive 

Income Laas} ‘Income Loss) 

Nawie of Entity as % of as % of ar % of wot 
consolidated consolidated consoltated) consolidated 

niet asaeta Amount profiedlaes) Aloant Comprehensive AMINE Comprehenrive Alou 

Income / (loss) Encome / (Joss) 

Parent Company 
Entry India Projects Private Limited. 

31 Mareh 2024 61.68% §.94.457 126.47%. 20.904 547.69% (4,351)] 103,012 16,553 
31 Mareh 2023 61.27% 8,77,904) 287.66. 3814 58.02% (31,406) 52.29% (27,792) 

Asmneiate Conmpatly 
(Cygnet Projects Private Limited 
31 March 2024 38.32% 5,355,595 -26.47% (4,375) 847.6000 3.891 3.01% (483) 
31 Migreh 2023 38.78% 536,078] -187.66% (2,488) aL.58% (22,872) 47.71% (25.360) 

Teta! 
2] March 2024 100% 14.46,0571 1% 16,529 100% (489) 100% 16.070 
31 March 2023 180% 14,33,981 100% 13265 100% (54,478) 100%. (53,152)| 



ENTRY INDIA PROJECTS PRIVATE LIMITED 
The accompanying motes are an intepral part of these consolidated financtal statements. 

Note 32 
THE DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO THE MICRO, SMALL AND MEDIUM ENTERFRISES DEVELOPMENT ACT, 2006, 
[MSMED ACT] AS AT MARCH 31, 2024 AND MARCH 31, 2023 IS AS UNDER: 

when the interest dues a3 above are actually paid to the small enterprises or the purpose] 

of disallowance asa deductible expenditure under section 23. 

S.No. [Particulars On March 31, 2024 | Om March 31, 2623 
J _ [Principal amount remaining unpaid - - 

2 [interest due thereon remaining uapaid ~ - 

3 [Interest paid by the Company in terms of Section 16 of the MSMED Act, along with the] - - 

amount of the payotent made to the supplier beyond the appointed day 

4 — [Interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been = - 

|paid but beyond the appointed day during the period) but without adding interest] 

specified under the MSMED Act 
§ [Interest accrued and remaining unpaid ” - 

@ = |Furtber interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, uptil such date . - 

This information has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company. 

Note 33 Pravious year figures have been regrouped and / or rearranged wherever necessary to make comparable with current year figures. 

As per our Report of even date attached 

For Rajiv Jaswant & Co 

Chartered Accountants 

Rajiv Ratan S 

Proprietor 
Membership No. : 510170 

Place : Ghaziabad 
Dated : 30.05.2024 

For and on bebalf of the Board of Directors 

Entry India Projects Private Limited 

Alok Dhir 
Director 

DIN: 00034335 

Place : New Delhi 

Dated : 30.05.2024 

Madhav Dhir 

Director 
DIN: 07227587 

she 
Kuldeep Bhardwaj 

Company Secretary 
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